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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
LU S

& ™™™
MBERE

Audited results for the
year ended 30th April,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BENA=ZTHLEEZREREE Increase/
2008 2007 (Decrease)
—EENFE —EEEF M (BD)
Turnover (HK$'M) EXB (BEET) 337 308 29
Loss for the year (HK$'M) NEFEEBE(BEET) (44) (81) 37
Loss per share (HK$) FEE ET) (0.06) (0.11) 0.05
EBITDA (HK$'M) EBITDA (& & T)
(Note 1) (Htat1) 58 9 49
(Audited) (Audited)
As at As at Increase/
30th April, 2008 30th April, 2007 (Decrease)
(RER) (BEZ)
R-ZZBENE RZZETLF
MA=+H mMA=+AH ',/ Ch)
Net debt gearing ratio (%) FEBEERLK(%)
(Note 2) (Kfit2) 6% 28% (22%)
Notes: B
1. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 1. BRAE - HE -FTEREHEAA
("EBITDA") is computed as loss before taxation plus depreciation, (TEBITDA) JTh LABRTR AT ES1E - INITE - &
finance costs, impairment losses, share of loss of an associate, BRA - FEEBE DEBERAAEER

and losses arising from changes in fair value of derivative

financial instruments.

2. Net debt gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including 2.

borrowings, trust receipt loans and bills payable less bank

balances and cash over shareholders’ equity.

TEERTIAQRFEEFEL CFHEAE -

FEREALE I ERRERAE (B
BE EREUBEERRENER) BRT
HERRBRSBARRRER -
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GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND TURNOVER ANALYSIS
B REXBEDM

GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL,
2008 AND 2007 (%)
BE_ZT/\FR-_ZZLFNA=THLFEZHEEXEIN (%)

TURNOVER ANALYSIS BY PERCENTAGE
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SALES AND PRODUCTION NETWORK
HEREERR

SEOUL &8
SHANGHAI £

HSINCHU #47, KAOHSIUNG =7
DONGGUAN 52, SHENZHEN J&8l, HONG KONG &%

MANILA 5EHr

SINGAPORE #7/03%

SN

/ FREMONT 752

annual report 2008 4 7






CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EE

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to shareholders the
results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2008.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 30th April, 2008, the Group reported a
turnover of HK$337 million (2007: HK$308 million), an increase
of HK$29 million or 9% and a consolidated net loss of HK$44
million (2007: HK$81 million), a decrease of HK$37 million loss
as compared with last year. Basic loss per share was HK$0.06
(2007: HK$0.11). EBITDA, computed as loss before taxation
plus depreciation, finance costs, impairment losses, share of loss
of an associate, and losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivative financial instruments, increased to HK$58 million
(2007: HK$9 million). The net debts gearing ratio was decreased
from 28% at the beginning of year to 6% at the balance sheet
date.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the year under review global economies and consumer
confidence, in particular those of the developed countries,
were negatively affected by a rapid rise in commodity prices
especially oil and metals, the latter of which is a major cost
component in the Company’s production. Compounding the
problem to manufacturers in China, of which the Company is
one, was the rampant inflation in staff and operating costs, and
the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB") against the United States
dollar (“US$"”) in which the Company’s revenue is denominated.

AANERREFEARRREAEEHRE
ZZ)\FHNA=ZFTHLEFEZRE -

FEXE
BE-_ZZ)/\FENA=ZTRHLEFE £&
k15 2 % %% 5337,000,0008 L (=%
T+ £ :308,000,000/8 7T) © B E F &0
29,000,000 7L 59% - AE BB 25 A
&5 18 % %8 544,000,000 T (Z BT+ 4.
81,000,000 7T) * BAF L& - BFHERD
37,000,000 T - BREAXEEA0.068 T
(ZEZEF 0118 T) -BFE - FiE-
TERBEMAR ([EBITDA] » MK B Al E
BN E BMEKK - BHEER  2EH
EREIEBRETESHIAATEEHES
ZEEME)  £EFAE58,000,0008 T (=
TZT 4 :9,000,00087) - FRBEAL
ERFN228% THRELEERZ6% °

RO

ROBEFE HRERSA EhhhEE
RARBTBAER AN T BERNTESE
AR HEHEEREEEGLVEKAR
FE O OATHRERRNPZELERE It
s mEIBRER (ARRREF—B)EEMN
UBEBREIREKERLAT  URAR
BHET(RRARKREZFHEEYE) FHE -
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Against this backdrop, however, the Company managed to

record a turnover of HK$182 million for the second half of the
financial year ended 30th April, 2008 which represented an
increase of 17% as compared to its turnover of HK$155 million
as reported in the interim results for the first half year period
ended 31st October, 2007. Adjusted profit for the year, after
taking out the effects of the impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment of HK$21 million (2007: HK$45 million) and the
losses arising from change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments of HK$37 million (2007: HK$7 million), would be
HK$14 million; as compared against a similarly adjusted loss of
HK$29 million reflecting the results of improvements in income
and containment of costs. Turnover generated from ASAT
maintained at 26% in the year under review (2007: 25%) and
the Company will continue to diversify its customer base in the
coming years.

MAJOR ASSOCIATE - ASAT

During the year under review, ASAT recorded a decrease in
net revenue by 5% from US$164.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,289 million) in fiscal year 2007 to US$155.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,215 million), with
a net loss of US$25 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$195 million) for the year ended 30th April, 2008 on its
accounts prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“USGAAP"),
as compared to a net loss of US$35 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$274 million) in its last corresponding year.

The improvement in fiscal 2008 results, including higher gross
margin, reduced operating expenses and lower net loss, reflected
the positive impact that the lower-cost Dongguan facility was
having on its financial performance as compared with fiscal year
2007.

1 0 QPL International Holdings Limited

EAMENHTERRE  EAQAREES
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The Group held 42.88% (2007: 42.48%) of ASAT as at 30th
April, 2008. The Group’s carrying value of ASAT was nil (2007:
Nil). The Group has continued not to recognise its share of
loss of ASAT except for any additional investment in ASAT
comprising of a HK$4 million (2007: HK$4 million) loan portion
of convertible preferred shares in ASAT, which formed part of the
investment in ASAT, and a receipt of preferred shares dividend in
the current year in the form of ordinary shares of ASAT at a value
of approximately HK$8 million (2007: HK$7 million), received
by the Group due to its holding of convertible preferred shares
in ASAT which carries a preference dividend rate of 13% per
annum payable semi-annually either in cash or in ordinary shares,
at the option of ASAT. The unrecognised share of losses for the
year amounted to HK$43 million (2007: HK$109 million) and the
accumulated unrecognised share of losses amounted to HK$383
million (2007: HK$340 million).

On 25th March, 2008, ASAT received a notice from the NASDAQ
Listing Qualifications Panel determining the delisting of ASAT's
securities from the NASDAQ market and stating that the trading
of its shares would be suspended at the open of business on
27th March, 2008. On 17th April, 2008, ASAT announced that
its American Depository Shares (“ADS") started trading on the
Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “ASTTY.OB”
and delisted from NASDAQ.

By reference to the closing price of ADS at the New ADS ratio of
ASAT on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board / NASDAQ Market
at balance sheet date, the market value of ASAT attributable
to the Group as at 30th April, 2008 was HK$59 million (2007:
HK$176 million).

RZZEZENFHEA=1+H AEEHELK
N42.88% (ZETLF 1 42.48%) 2w o
FEERBEELEAXEa L FAERZ(ZF
T+F %) AEECEEFLIERES
HRKXZEER  EREEK X 2 EREINE

BRI EPBEBREXRURE —H
2 B4k ST AT R 4B 5T 1% 4,000,000 T (=
T T L4 : 4,000,000 7T) 2 EHEBMH
RASERBELEAX A RBRELR M
RAEAFEURNLEXEBRAFABIMEBLD
8,000,000/ 7L (ZEZT + 4 : 7,000,000/%
) ZEBERKRE  ZF A RKRELRIS
BHEFRERXZIATUNRASKEBR A
ATNEERBREETFI13% - AFERE
R2Z D15 818 B43,000,0008 T (ZEE+
F :109,000,000% T) * T BFF K #ER
15 &8 %4383,000,0008 T (Z BT+ 4 ¢
340,000,000 7T) °

RZEEZNFE=F=-+HB &KXWK3
NASDAQEMERK/NEZ B BEEBER
FARLER X2 EBHIENASDAQT H KR IE - I
RABH-_ZEENEZA-t+LtBHAEM
FIERBEKN cROHEFEE RZZTT
NFEOA+TER #EENEMEELESF N
[ASTTY.OB W R EEXEIHINKZ 5 & B IR
F 16 B B W ENASDAQBR K »

LERHEAFTF L REERX2ELESFR
BEAEERIBINZ FHEIRNASDAQT
BrEmE AEER-_ZTN\FHNA=1
B & 1 44 4k XX 2 ™1 fE /59,000,000 7T (=
TE 4 176,000,000/ 7T) ©
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OUTLOOK

In June 2008, the Semiconductor Industry Association (“SIA")

stated that healthy demand from key end-markets would keep
worldwide semiconductor sales at record levels through 2011.
However due to continue strong competition SIA lowered its
forecast for 2008 semiconductor sales growth from 7.7 percent
to 4.3 percent which growth rate was maintained by SIA in its
press release dated 2nd October, 2008. Meanwhile, IC Insights,
another semiconductor market watcher, is holding steady on its
2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 IC market growth rate forecasts of
8%, 11%, 13%, and 16% growth respectively.

It should be noted that many major semiconductor market
research houses, including SIA and IC Insights, have indicated
that there may be (downward) revisions of their forecasts
especially for the near term. For example, SIA will release its
annual forecast on 19th November, 2008 and has already hinted
that the current turmoil in worldwide financial markets greatly
complicates forecasting sales for 2009 and beyond. Restoring
consumer confidence and improving the lending environment will
be the key to growing semiconductor sales in 2009.

By increasing its efforts to deliver to customer satisfaction, the
Group’s unaudited consolidated turnover for the first fiscal half
year ended 31st October, 2008 recorded a double-digit growth
over the sales level attained for the same period of last year.
Sales were rapidly hampered as time progressed, in tandem with
the precipitous drop in consumer confidence as global financial
crisis worsened. Accordingly the Company continued to reduce
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costs by natural attrition and improving operating efficiencies, in
a bid to keep the Company in a sustainable position during this
very challenging period. Under current volatile market situation,
the Company does not expect an improvement in consumer
confidence or market conditions within the next financial period.
Accordingly it is anticipated that the trading conditions for the
Company will continue to be extremely difficult.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, the Group has repaid certain bank and other
loans in a sum total of HK$22 million. As at 30th April, 2008,
the Group’s total outstanding debts of HK$33 million (2007:
HK$82 million) comprised of HK$10 million (2007: HK$37
million) trust receipt loans and bill payables, HK$13 million
(2007: HK$35 million) other secured loans, and HK$10 million
(2007: HK$10 million) loan from a director. In terms of maturity,
borrowings of HK$33 million (2007: HK$82 million) or the
whole of the total debts will be repaid within one year (2007:
100% repayable within one year). In terms of interest bearing,
HK$23 million (2007: HK$72 million) was interest bearing and
HK$10 million (2007: HK$10 million) was interest free. In terms
of currency denomination, approximately 46% (2007: 28%)
was denominated in US$, approximately 31% (2007: 43%) was
denominated in RMB, approximately 23% (2007: 29%) in HKS.

BHIB KA - Eilb M BAES - HRA
NEFEERNGEN - BAITRKRE  ARQ
AMEREEEEOCE MR E MR T — @M
KR - Fit > ARRAHAS 2 K&
RENEt+tHHE-

Bt 7% Bl B

FR - AEEEEETHROKEMEREG R
22,000,000 T - RZZEENEMAH =+
H AN&EBBREELEES $£33,000,000
B (ZZTZ L :82,000,00087m) @+ H
RERBEBEERRENEE10,000,0004%
T (ZZTZ+ 4 :37,000,00087C) « Hfth
B E 313,000,000 T (T F:
35,000,000% 7t) & & % & 510,000,000
B (ZFTZE L9 :10,000,00087T) ° £
FHAEFKE A ® 0 33,000,000 L (= F
T £ & :82,000,0008 ) k2 HEEE
BAR—FRNEE(ZZZTLF - 100%4E
R—FRNEE) - &EFEFE 23,000,000
BT (ZZEZT 4 :72,000,00087T) Bt
B E - MM10,000,0008 T (ZTT+4F:
10,000,000 7T) "R EER - EEHFE
S K46% (ZTETEF 28% ) AET
BB H31% (ZFEZTF :43%) A A
REEBEMN  #923% (ZZEZT£F :29%)
IAE T B EBAL o
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As at 30th April, 2008, the fair values of the conversion option
of the convertible preferred shares and the warrants valued by
independent professional valuers amounted to approximately
US$1.5 million (2007: US$5.8 million) or equivalent to
approximately HK$12 million (2007: HK$45 million) and US$0.2
million (2007: US$0.7 million) or equivalent to approximately
HK$1 million (2007: HK$5 million) respectively, resulting in losses
arising from changes in fair values of approximately HK$37
million (2007: HK$7 million) recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

DISTRIBUTION

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year (2007: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 30th April, 2008, plant and equipment with a carrying value
of HK$29 million (2007: HK$32 million) were pledged to secure
certain banking facilities, bank loan and other loans granted to
the Group.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 30th April, 2008, the Group invested
HK$9 million (2007: HK$10 million) in acquiring property, plant
and equipment. This capital expenditure was financed essentially
from internal resources.

14 QPL International Holdings Limited
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30th April, 2008, the Group, other than ASAT, employed
approximately 1,880 employees (2007: 2,140 employees). The
Group maintained its remuneration policy comprising salary and
other benefits including share option scheme as an integral part
of the Total Quality Management.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are determined by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board, having regard to their individual duties
and responsibilities with the Company, remuneration benchmark
in the industry and prevailing market conditions.

APPRECIATION

[, on behalf of the board, would take this opportunity to express
our sincere gratitude to all staff for their valuable contribution
to the Group. Further, | would like to express appreciation to the
Group's customers, business associates and shareholders for their
continual support.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th November, 2008
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRNEAREBAEBEREAAEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 56, is the founder of the Group. He

has been an executive Director and Executive Chairman of the
Board since January 1989. He is also a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He has a B. Sc. Degree in Chemical
Engineering and over 25 years of experience in servicing the
semiconductor industry. He has been a Director of ASAT Holdings
Limited (“ASAT"”), a company currently trading on the Over-the-
Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “ASTTY.OB” and an
associated company of the Company, since October 1999 and
was appointed as Acting Chief Executive Officer of ASAT since
1st September, 2006.

Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin, aged 49, has been an executive
Director of the Company since January 2006. He is also the
Group Financial Controller of the Company, a position which he
has held since joining the Company in June 1999, and has been
a Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1st September,
2006.

Mr. Kwan has a B. Com. Degree from the University of Southern
Queensland, Australia. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants.

Prior to joining the Group in June 1999, he had over 19 years
of auditing, accounting and corporate advisory experience with
Price Waterhouse (now PricewaterhouseCoopers) and listed and
private groups of conglomerates in Hong Kong and overseas.
For the preceding seven years, he held various financial control
management positions in the China International Trust and

Investment Corporation group of companies.
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Mr. Kwan was a director of ASAT Holdings Limited, a company
currently trading on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board
under the symbol “ASTTY.OB” and an associated company of
the Company, from November 2003 to March 2004 and was
reappointed in March 2006. Mr. Kwan also serves as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, all being unlisted
companies. He was a non-executive director of Wafer Systems
Limited, whose shares have been listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange since May 2002, between May
2001 and August 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, aged 52, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
October 1994. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee of the Company.

He qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1980 and in
Hong Kong in 1982. He was a senior partner of Richards Butler
from 1985 to 2001 where he established the corporate and
commercial department. He has had wide experience in corporate
finance and cross-border transactions, including mergers and
acquisitions, regional telecommunications, debt and equity
capital markets, corporate reorganisations and privatisation of
stated-owned enterprises in the People’s Republic of China.
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He was a senior advisor to the Board of Director of PCCW
Limited, a Hong Kong-listed company between August 2001
and September 2003. He is an independent non-executive
director of Pacific Basin Shipping Limited, a Hong Kong-listed
company and an executive director of First Pacific Company
Limited, a Hong Kong-based and Hong Kong-listed investment
and management company with principal business interests
related to telecommunications and consumer food products.
He also serves as a commissioner of First Pacific’'s subsidiary in
Indonesia, PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk, an Indonesia-listed
company, and as a director of First Pacific's associated company
in the Philippines, Level Up! International Holdings Pte Limited,
an unlisted company. In November 2005, he became a non-
executive director of India Capital Growth Fund Limited which is

listed on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, aged 67, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the

Company.

Mr. Sze is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and was a partner in an international firm
of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years. He
is a non-executive director of a number of Hong Kong listed

companies.
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Mr. Wong Chun Bong, Alex, aged 49, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He is
also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the

Company.

Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, and is
the proprietor of C.B. Wong & Co. Certified Public Accountants.
He was the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) Hong
Kong in 1999/2000. He also served as a member of the Inland
Revenue Department Users’” Committee from 1998 to 2003. He
has over 25 years’ experience in auditing, taxation, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Wong did not hold any
directorship in any other listed public companies in the last three

years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Cho Yuk, Lily, aged 45, joined the Group since April
2002 and was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company
in March 2006.

She is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a
B.Sc. Degree in Accounting and Statistics from University of
Southampton and a M. Sc. Degree in Management Science from

Imperial College of Science and Technology, University of London.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board of Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30th April, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and
sale of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and

investment holding.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2008 are

set out in the consolidated income statement on page 47.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
at 30th April, 2008 amounted to HK$71 million (2007: HK$40

million).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share

capital and share premium accounts.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and

equipment at an aggregate cost of HK$9 million.

Details of this and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 14

to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30th April,

the Group’s turnover and purchases attributable to its major

2008, the percentages of

customers and suppliers are as follows:

%
Turnover attributable to:
Largest customer 26
Five largest customers 57
Purchases attributable to:
Largest supplier 28
Five largest suppliers 58

ASAT Holdings Limited (“ASAT") and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “ASAT group”) is the largest customer of the
Group referred to above. Details of the transactions between
the Group and ASAT group are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the directors,
such transactions were carried out on terms no less favourable

than terms available to independent third parties.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the year did a
director, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of the
Company owned more than 5% of the Company’'s issued
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest

customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Mr. Li Tung Lok (Executive Chairman)
Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson*

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert*

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex*

*  Independent non-executive director

In accordance with the bye-law 102A of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Messrs. Wong Chun Bong Alex and Robert Charles Nicholson,
will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
Executive Chairman, Mr. Li Tung Lok, is not subject to retirement

by rotation by virtue of Bermuda Law.

BEE
AEENBERBREARZARRESM D

FR%KEE (HITEE)
L8R k4
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LB
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BRBARNR 2 ABHAAFEI02A% TR A
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RELEBE MABEBRLBEBEEL - 1T
ITRFRAKAERBEERELAVEARES
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30th April, 2008, the interests of the directors of the
Company and their associates in the share capital and underlying
shares attached to share options and warrants of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) of the issued share capital of the Company
were as follows:

(@) Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERAROREBERD 2ES

RZEZNFNA=Z1+H ARABREESH
RHEEGA ([FHFRBEEG]) E35215m
&ﬁZ%E%ﬁ%ﬁ ARABEERFESEZ
EANLTHAEANRR S E TS LR 2K
$&%k%&wk%ﬁ%Wﬁ%kﬁZ%
m ABEBEBMIAESF LA (T ETR
wnﬁﬁimQT§$Lﬂﬁ% 5 2Rk
TRIBENEARARAREBHARSMERA
B ([BRFT]) 2 ARA) B %77 A RS
-

7

(a) ALXARGREBEROZHR

Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares of the Company

AAACRTEER /HERGER
Percentage
of the issued
share capital
Personal Family  Corporate of the
Name of director interests interests interests Total Company
ERAR
BRTRA
EEpsg BARSE ZEESE L @t 2B
Mr. Li Tung Lok TRE%E
- Ordinary shares in issue -BETTER 273,794,282 3,000,000 18,590,944 295,385,226 38.49%
(Notefffzfa)  (Notefffzth)
Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin BEm L
- Unlisted share option —JEFTIBENRE 3,750,000 - - 3,750,000 0.49%
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert SEEEE
- Unlisted share option —3F FEEE 300,000 - - 300,000 0.04%
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson REELE
- Unlisted share option - EmERE 300,000 - - 300,000 0.04%
Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex FRAEE
- Unlisted share option —JErmERE 300,000 - - 300,000 0.04%
Notes: B E
(a) The family interests of 3,000,000 shares represent the (a) B # % 23,000,000 B 15 5 = A 44 %

interest of the wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok.

(b) Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owned Solar Forward Company
Limited, which owns 18,590,944 shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EEZEREROREBERGO 2R (9)

UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

(b) MEZEz2ROREEROG ZFR

Long position in shares and underlying shares of an
associated corporation

(b)

Number of issued ordinary shares/

underlying shares of ASAT
SHEYERTEER /HERARA
Percentage
of the
issued share
Personal Family  Corporate capital
Name of director interests interests interests Total of ASAT
1 84k
ERTREZ
EZnA BAES ZEER ARER @t oLt
Mr. Li Tung Lok RS
- Ordinary shares in issue ~ — B &/TE &K 1,448,010 - - 1,448,010
- Unlisted share options — I FTEE R E 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
- Unlisted warrants (Note) ~ —3E F R #EE (MizE) 41,800,000 - - 41,800,000
45,748,010 - - 45,748,010 6.03%
Note: On 28th February, 2008, Mr. Li Tung Lok was granted a e : RZBEZENF-A -+ NH - EK

compensation award in form of a warrant to purchase
an aggregate of up to 41,800,000 ordinary share of
ASAT at an exercise price of USD0.01 per ordinary share,
subject to certain adjustments, in consideration for his
past and ongoing services as the Acting Chief Executive
Officer of ASAT. The warrant will be exercisable with
respect to 20,600,000 ordinary shares immediately, with
the remainder subject to certain vesting or performance
criteria. The warrant will expire on 1st February, 2011
and will be subject to adjustments and other terms and
conditions contained therein.

Save as disclosed herein and for shares in subsidiaries held by

the directors in trust for their immediate holding companies, at
30th April, 2008, none of the directors or chief executives of the
Company, nor their associates, had any interest or short position

in any securities or derivative of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

NAFRLLEEF D RBREE - F
AEATRBEETLEKNER
TRBEZFHER - TR%LEE
ARRBBREEZSTR T ®ER.01
Enz20FEE(MTFARB)BAR
% & 441,800,000/ (kX 7 &
B - AR TTE 2 RREE S R
20,600,000/ @Ak - HeRAIER
HETEBARBLAMBER - R
BREBEA-_ZE——F_A—HBE
RN R AN O R S R S
RRAEHFTARR -

BEXHBEEELREFUERETAREER

BRI EMEB QR Z RN

RZZTZEN

FMA=1tH ARAEF TBTHAE
RWECHMBEALTHRERE AR AR EAN
B ZE (EERBHLBERE) 2 EMA
EHRIMETAZEAREIRE -

25

annual report 2008 4



SHARE OPTIONS BRE
(@) The Company (a) ZAATF
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set AKAREBRETE 2FBIHAGEEHT
out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. R ERMIFEI3 o
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TREBESENEEEE ZARAE
share options granted to the directors and employees [RERFARZED
during the year:
Movements during Outstanding
Outstanding the year at
Date of at FRED 30th April, Exercise
grant 1st May, 2007 Granted Forfeited 2008 Period
RZERtE R=ZENE
hR-H MA=TH
RLAH R ATHE B&Ri BHEK R AT6E TS
Category 1: Directors
F-H E2
Mr. Kwan Kit Tong 11th May, 2007 - 3,750,000 - 3,750,000 25th May, 2007 -
Kevin 10th May, 2012
MM E “E2t5RAT-A “ZZ+FRAZTRAZE
“Z-ZFRA+H
Mr. Sze Tsai To 11th May, 2007 - 300,000 - 300,000 14th May, 2007 -
Robert 10th May, 2012
SEWLE “EEtERAT-H “ET+ERRATHAZE
—Z-_%%AtH
Mr. Robert Charles 11th May, 2007 - 300,000 - 300,000 14th May, 2007 -
Nicholson 10th May, 2012
PRELE ZZT+FERAT-H “EZT+ERATEARE
—Z-_%nA+H
Mr. Wong Chun Bong  11th May, 2007 - 300,000 - 300,000 18th May, 2007 -
Alex 10th May, 2012
THRALE “Z%t50A+-H “ER+ERATNRE
“Z-_£7ATH
Total
@3 - 4,650,000 - 4,650,000
Category 2:
R
Eligible employees 11th May, 2007 - 24,675,000 (1,800,000 22,875,000 14th May, 2007 -
10th May, 2012
REREE ZEEtERA+-H “ZZt+FERRATMAZE
“E-ZFRA+H
- 29,325,000 (1,800,000) 27,525,000
No options were exercised during the year. FRALEBREEITRE -
The closing price of the Company’'s shares immediately KRR ERE _ZT+FHA
before 11th May, 2007, the date of grant of the share T-R(AIRLEREBR)ERZ
options, was HK$0.71. W8 A0.718 T o
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BRRE
(b) Associated corporation (b) HMHEEHE
Pursuant to a stock option exchange program offered by BIELER AR FERTIR I 2 B A i
ASAT in prior years, 2,500,000 new stock options were R E  FRLLEN_ZTE=F
granted to Mr. Li Tung Lok on 29th August, 2003, as NANAZ+ LB ##%2,500,0001 ¥ &
follows: PeE - FHBFWMT
Vesting
period from Number
vesting  Subscription of ordinary
commencement price per share options
Date of date ordinary  outstanding at
Date of grant acceptance Date of expiry (i.e. 24th August, 2001) share  30th April, 2008
BRTHRAS R-ZBENE
(N=22-FN\B MA=+AH
~“t+mMA) B SREBR RTEZER
REAH EHmAH &% B EAETH ZRABE REBREHE
usb
e
29th August, 2003 27th October, 2003 28th August, 2013 1 year 0.288 2,500,000
—TZ=F —TT=F —T-=% —f
NAEZ+hE +A=t++H NEZ+N\B
No options were exercised during the year. FAMEBEREREITRE -
ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BEROIES 228
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme and warrants as described B IEEHER O MBBER GO 2 ES | LB
in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and  RX#E | /R &0 it o~ B8 AR A 51 20 B R RLHE B 5] -
Underlying Shares” and “Share Options” at no time during the 7K 72 &) sk E (T {a] fff B 2 =) 72 & A (T fa] 65 8 I
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any  EZ2HEEMLH  FARREZAJEEALN
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire R RIS Ef £ A ABEE 2 Rk EHmE
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures  #@' MEEZ - T EZTHAE - HE 2B
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the 18U T Z FRRANF RN INEREH K IT{F
directors or chief executives, nor their spouses or children under T A RE AR A EH ZHEF| -

the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the

Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

(a)

In June 2005, QPL Limited and Talent Focus Industries
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into a Supply Agreement with ASAT Limited for
reducing delivery cycle time by maintaining minimum
inventory level agreed by both parties. For finished goods
produced by QPL Limited pursuant to forecast provided
by ASAT Limited but remained undelivered for over 3
months, ASAT Limited is liable for paying 66% of sale
prices of these undelivered finished goods to QPL Limited.
As agreed with ASAT Limited, the revenue arising from
these undelivered goods is recognised when the condition
meets. During the year, no revenue was recognised under
this agreement and the outstanding receivable from ASAT
Limited in last year was fully settled.

In 1999, the Group entered into an agreement with ASAT
group under which ASAT group provides the Group with
management information services and in return, the
Group pays a portion of ASAT group's costs associated
with its management information system operation subject
to an adjustment according to usage as agreed between
ASAT group and the Group. During the year, no expense

was recognised under this agreement.

Save as aforementioned, no contract of significance to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a

director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered
into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

No director was a party to a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without the payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 13 OF THE

LISTING RULES

At 30th April, 2008, the Group has obtained secured borrowings
of RMB11 million (approximately HK$12 million) requiring an
undertaking from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, to maintain no less than 20% of
the issued shares of the Company throughout the loan period.

Details are as follows:

EEEWN

REARFHERR  XERARBREAM
MEBAR z2MAEMERBOHEK 2 ER
RITREBMBEIT ZEREL

EEMERARRRETMNE QAR E
BARE-—FATINEECEERERIN)
AINBRIEZIREEH -

BRELTRAUFIBEFH Z2KE

RZZZENFENA=TH AEEEBAR
#11,000,0007T (£912,000,000 ) 2 &
HIBEE  ERARAEERZRIERESFTH
LEEFRFENEEEERR  BELARAFE
BT AL N20% - BEFRBOT

Type Outstanding amount Revised tenure
BE REEELE CHES

Secured long term loan

FHR\|RBER

DELAY IN PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS

AND DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT

On the basis that ASAT, the associate company quoted on
OTC Bulletin Board (OTCBB), in which the Company owns a
shareholding interest of approximately 42.88% has failed to
publish its audited financial information for the financial year
ended 30th April, 2008, the Company was compelled to delay
publication of this results announcement and the dispatch of the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 30th April, 2008,
in each case, beyond the 31st August, 2008 deadline (being the
maximum four month period permitted under the Listing Rules).

RMB11 million
AR¥11,000,0007T

1 year ending in January 2009
—F RIZTETNF- A

EERMEFRARTEFR

HRARAZHERARLEKX  ERNXHE
B ZHERBE MARAERELD
42.88% 2 it REEEMEBE_TEN
FUA=ZTALMRFEZEERNBE
o B ARAFETEEERARABE S
FENFOA=ZTHLEFEZARZERER
FRARBZFER MERXERERFTEH
FHIEHHER-_ZENFNA=+—H
ZHR (B ETRUBTF<HZZOEAHR) -
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DELAY IN PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS
AND DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT (continued)

The Board approved the Company’s results for the year ended
30th April, 2008 and the annual report at the board meeting
held on 14th November, 2008, which was the earliest practicable
date following publication of ASAT's audited accounts and
allowing for due consideration of their impact on the Company’s

results and finalisation of the Company's audit.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
At 30th April, 2008, other than the interests disclosed above

in respect of a director, the Company has not been notified
of any other interest representing 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company and recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares

and warrants.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of
the Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board, having regard to their individual duties
and responsibilities with the Company, remuneration benchmark

in the industry and prevailing market conditions.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive

to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set

out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of the independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or under the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the
percentage of the Company's shares which are in the hands of
the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of issued
shares throughout the year ended 30th April, 2008.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Tung Lok

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th November, 2008
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& EEARE

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance practices. The Company
adopted its own Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
"QPL Code") incorporating the principles and code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
"CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A copy of the QPL Code is posted

on the Company’s website.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all the code provisions set out in
the CG Code except for the deviation explained in the relevant

paragraph below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the

“Board"”) assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Group'’s
affairs. Responsibilities of the Board include but are not limited
to the formulation of the Group’s strategy and policies, setting
of corporate and management targets and key operational
initiatives, monitoring and control of operational and financial
performance, and approval of major capital expenditures,
major investments, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring and significant operational

financial and management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group's businesses to the executive management under
the supervision of the chief executive officer. The division of
responsibilities between the Board and the management is set
out in the QPL Code.
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Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have
also been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s

affairs. Details of these three committees are set out below.

The Company has established a policy enabling Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’'s expense. The Board will provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist the relevant
Director or Directors to discharge his/their duties to the Company

as and when requested or necessary.

Board Composition

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Group, and that the
balance between executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company

and to enable the Board to exercise independent judgment.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the Board consists of two executive Directors, one of
whom is the founder of the Group and Chairman of the Board,
and three non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent

non-executive Directors.

Executive Director and Chairman of the Board
Li Tung Lok

Executive Director
Kwan Kit Tong Kevin

(Chief Executive Officer and Group Financial Controller)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Robert Charles Nicholson

Sze Tsai To Robert

Wong Chun Bong Alex
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The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience
in corporate management, strategic planning, and legal,
accounting and financial matters. Of the five existing Directors,
one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors are qualified accountants. The biographies of the
existing Directors are set out on pages 16 to 19 of this Annual
Report. The information is also available on the Company’s

website.

Throughout the year under review, the Board has complied
with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in having at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received from each existing independent
non-executive Director an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all existing independent non-executive Directors to be
independent on the basis of the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,

business or family relationship among the members of the Board

or with the chief executive officer.
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Appointment, Retirement and Re-election of Directors
Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be

subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, half of the Directors
(excluding Director(s) holding office as executive chairman and/
or managing director, who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law,
exempted from retirement by rotation) shall retire from office
at each annual general meeting of the Company and shall be
eligible for re-election. As the executive Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Li Tung Lok is not subject to retirement by rotation. In order
to comply with Code Provision A.4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed
to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three
years. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
29th November, 2006, Mr. Li Tung Lok voluntarily retired from
office and was re-elected as an executive Director. Mr. Li Tung

Lok continues to act as the Chairman of the Board.

The Company currently does not have a Director holding office

as its managing director.

Non-executive Directors
The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of
not more than three years, subject to retirement and re-election

pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company.

EXZI REREER
TEEIRTH ZTAEXFEA L2
REF (BRERTREZAEFHE
B=FHEHTER K-

R TE
) AR

9\

BREARBDZARMAA  *HBEF(FEH
HERTEER REFLELERB2E
O R/ABEDREBAREZENER R E
TR)ENARAZBEEBRRBFRE LK
ERaERBEREE FRALEERESS
ZHTER BHUBERESE BETT
AR EAL22G FRELLTECDRE B
BRE URIBE=ZFEE-R-R_FERN
Ft—AZThBAETZARABERBFX
gr FRLLLEERERE LEBELH
TEF - FRALALUBRIESTSLIR -

AR YEREEFHEETALE R -

HRHITES
EMTESRZAEZEETAHNATBE=
FUYARBARAZAAMAERRBEE
BAE o

annual report 2008 4 35



., AR
Exges

REBEFE KRETN\REEFEGH-EF
ERMEZHERBLHEET

Board Meetings
During the year under review, eight Board meetings were held.
The attendance record of each member of the Board is set out

below.

Attendance/

Members of the Board Number of Meetings
EEEgHE HERE &EHA
Executive Director and Chairman of the Board HITEEREFESTFE
Li Tung Lok = [F] 4 8/8
Executive Director HITEE
Kwan Kit Tong Kevin 2 {5 R

(Chief Executive Officer and Group Financial Controller) (TR FEE Y EAEE) 8/8
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHRTEF
Robert Charles Nicholson BB 7/8
Sze Tsai To Robert S EME 8/8
Wong Chun Bong Alex F iR 8/8

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provisions A.2 of the CG Code stipulates that there should
be a clear distinction between management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Company’s business. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company is set out in the
QPL Code. While the positions of Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer are held by two different persons (being
Mr. Li Tung Lok and Mr Kwan Kit Tong Kevin, respectively), as
the Chairman both manages the Board and participates in daily
aspects of the Company’s business, the roles of Chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer are in substance not properly
segregated. As the founder and Chairman of the Company, Mr.
Li Tung Lok's industry expertise and detailed understanding of
the operations is highly regarded by the Company. Accordingly,
his participation at certain critical areas such as human resources
and purchasing functions add significant value to the business

growth.
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To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,
business or family relationship between the Chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant to
the then Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of
this Annual Report, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Sze Tsai To
Robert (being the Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Robert
Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex. Mr. Sze Tsai To
Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex are qualified accountants
with extensive experience in accounting, audit and financial
matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent
with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee is posted on the Company’s website and
also available from the company secretary of the Company on

request.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by
providing an independent review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting system, and effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system;

- reviewing the Group’s financial information; and

- reviewing the appointment of external auditors to ensure

continuing auditor independence.
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During the year under review, four Audit Committee meetings REBEFE BTN AERZZESESE -
were held. The attendance record of each member of the Audit BERZEESKE Z HERBEENT
Committee is set out below.

Attendance/
Members of the Audit Committee Number of Meetings
EREEEHE 378 V- 1 -
Independent Non-executive Directors HTHNTEE
Sze Tsai To Robert (Chairman of the Audit Committee) R EW (FEZZE&1/F) 3/4
Robert Charles Nicholson REE 3/4
Wong Chun Bong Alex FIRHF 4/4

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit

Committee included:

EHLBEERBE_TTLFOA

- reviewing and approving external auditor’s engagement -

letter in relation to the audit of the financial statements
for the year ended 30th April, 2007,

reviewing external auditor's audit plan in relation to the
audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30th
April, 2007;

reviewing and discussing with the external auditor
significant audit, accounting and internal control issues
arising from the audit of the financial statements for the
year ended 30th April, 2007;

reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30th
April, 2007 and making recommendations to the Board

for approval,

reviewing and approving external auditor’'s engagement
letter in relation to the review of the interim financial
statements for the six months ended 31st October, 2007;

discussing with the external auditor accounting issues
arising from the review of the interim financial statements
for the six months ended 31st October, 2007;
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- reviewing the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 31st October, 2007 and making
recommendations to the Board for approval,

- reviewing the scope of internal control review proposed

by the external firm of qualified accountants; and

- reviewing and discussing with the external firm of
qualified accountants the report on the review of the

system of internal control of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23rd January,
2006. Since its establishment, the Remuneration Committee has
consisted of one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Robert
Charles Nicholson (being the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong
Alex.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the Company's website and also available from the company

secretary of the Company on request.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee

include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors

and senior management; and

- determining and approving the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior

management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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During the year under review, a written resolution was passed
and one Remuneration Committee meeting was held to set

the remuneration level of Mr. Li Tung Lok, the Chairman of the

REBEFE  —HEERZREBBMH M
ZEQERTT-REH UEBEEEFSX
FEREACEBE_STTENFONA=THL

Board, for the year ended 30th April, 2008. The attendance FEZHMKE HFHWEESSKEZHF
record of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set REEHEOT
out below:
Members of the Attendance/
Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings
YFMEEERE ER8, 88 E
Executive Director and Chairman of the Board HITEEREFSLE
Li Tung Lok A4 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHNTEE
Robert Charles Nicholson RSB

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (FHZEEEFE) A
Sze Tsai To Robert £ B 1/1
Wong Chun Bong Alex F iR B 1/1

During the year under review, written resolutions were passed
to grant Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin, an executive Director, a
share option to subscribe for shares of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme and to adjust the salaries of Mr.

Kwan Kit Tong Kevin and the company secretary of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23rd January,
2006. Since its establishment, the Nomination Committee
has consisted of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex (being the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr.
Sze Tsai To Robert.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’'s website and also available from the company

secretary of the Company on request.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to

the Board on the candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive

Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular, the Chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer.

No meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the

year under review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for dealings in
the securities of the Company by Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’

transactions throughout the year under review.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the

chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting
and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to

answer questions at the annual general meeting.

Due to their sudden changes in their respective business time
schedules, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Chairman of Remuneration Committee could not attend the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 26th November,
2007; however, Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex, a member of the
Company’'s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee,
attended the Company’s annual general meeting and was

available to answer questions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group at the end
of the year under review and of results of operation and cash

flows of the Group for the year under review.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year

under review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on

a consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and

reasonable; and

- prepared the consolidated financial statements on
going concern basis and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.
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The statement of the Auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the Auditor's Report on

pages 45 to 46 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was reappointed as the Company’s
external auditor at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26th November, 2007 until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company. During the year under
review, a remuneration of approximately HK$1.6 million was paid
and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the provision of
audit services, and approximately HK$0.5 million was paid and
payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the provision of non-
audit related services (including review of interim report and tax

services) to the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Directors

should at least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of

the system of internal control of the Group.

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to
establish and maintain a sound and effective internal control
system to ensure the smooth running of operations, safeguard
the Group's assets and shareholders interest as well as ensure the
reliability of financial statements in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. In devising internal controls, the Group has
regard to the nature and extent of the risk, the likelihood of it
crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of internal control
is designed to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute, assurance against the risk of material misstatement,

fraud or loss.
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During the year under review, the Group engaged an external
firm of qualified accountants to initiate an independent review
covering the overall financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and monitoring control aspects for a substantial
part of the Group's operations. A report from the external firm of
qualified accountants was addressed and presented to the Board,
and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board. The report
did not reveal any significant defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing of significant business, financial, compliance
and operational risks specific to the Group. Relevant
recommendations made by the Audit Committee and the
external qualified accountants who performed the reviews at
least annually would be implemented, if appropriate, as soon
as possible, by the Group to further enhance its internal control

policies, procedures and practices.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
7B HRE

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
QPL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 47 to 118, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 30th April, 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
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the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30th
April, 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

14th November, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e & %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 #Z=—ZZ \EWA=+HIFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ZTTLF
Notes HK$'M HK$'M
BisE BEABT BEETT
Turnover EEE 7 337 308
Other income H Ao A 9 78 a1
Exchange loss, net [E 5B F 5 (7) (2)
Changes in inventories of finished BIRK G K B
goods and work in progress 2IEEEE) 1 (2)
Raw materials and consumables used i F3 R 1 %} 2 8 #% T (164) (149)
Staff costs EBERAE (89) (92)
Depreciation of property, plant and M MBENEBREZITE
equipment (28) (44)
Impairment loss on property, plant Y MBERBREZREER
and equipment (21) (45)
Losses arising from changes MTESMIARATEZY
in fair value of derivative ELZEE
financial instruments (37) (7)
Other expenses H A B &2 (98) (95)
Interest on bank and other loans ARAFAZEEEZRITR
wholly repayable within five years HMERZHE (3) (4)
Share of loss of an associate DIEEE A REEB (12) (1)
Loss before taxation PR A 1R (43) (102)
Taxation 18 10 (1) 21
Loss for the year REEEIE 1 (44) (81)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss per share BRERE 12
Basic and diluted ERREE (0.06) 0.11)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

e EE &R X

AT 30TH APRIL, 2008 R=ZZT/\FMA=+H

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ERLF
Notes HK$'M HK$'M
P&t BEBT BEBTT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment WIE - HEs K RE 14 122 162
Interest in an associate il 15 - -
Investment in convertible preferred AR ELERIEE
shares — loan portion —EXREHBH 16 = -
122 162
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 38 37
Trade and other receivables E 5N E M ERFRTE 18 57 61
Trade receivable due from an associate JEWEEE AT 2 E 5B 19 27 21
Deposits and prepayments Ze RIERRIE 6 4
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 20 18 7
Derivative financial instruments TTESRmIE 16 13 50
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIR S 21 22 23
181 203
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A e FRIE 22 38 34
Trust receipt loans and bill payables ERKEER N EMNEE 23 10 37
Deposits and accrued expenses ReRETER 45 36
Borrowings BE 24 23 45
116 152
Net current assets REBEETFE 65 57
187 213
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2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$'M HK$'M
liks3 BEABRT BEET
Capital and reserves EEARREE
Share capital A% A 25 61 61
Share premium and reserves &1 % B R 26 122 148
Equity attributable to the BARERFEEA
equity holders of the parent PR 183 209
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Accrued expenses fERTERE 4 4
187 213

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 118 were  HRFATENQE Y GAUBRREESTEN —
TENF+—ATHBARELEERE - W
TIEEREREEFGEE

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
14th November, 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Tung Lok Kwan Kit Tong Kevin
FE% R3]
Director Director

2 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE

FAERBERIBR XX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 &#iZ—Z T/ \EWA=+HI-FE
i,

2008 2007
—EENF —ZTTLHF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEABT BEETT
Exchange differences arising on BEGINEBIEE ZEN =58
translation of foreign operations - 1
Gains on fair value changes of AHEEREQNFEER 2 W
available-for-sale investments 15 4
Net income recognised directly BERRARER WA FRE
in equity 15 5
Loss for the year NEEEE (44) (81)
Reserve released upon disposal of HERMHIEEREREL 2 HiE
available-for-sale investments (1) -
Total recognised expense for the year — ZNEEHER S H1E%8 (30) (76)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
AR ERE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 &#iZ—Z T/ \EWA=+HI-FE
i,

2008 2007
—EENE “ETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBR AEET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE (43) (102)
Adjustments for: FE
Interest on bank and other loans BARAFRAEHEEL
wholly repayable within five years RITREMERZFE 3 4
Share of loss of an associate DR E N RER 12 11
Depreciation of property, plant mE - HBERZBNE
and equipment 28 44
Impairment loss on property, plant mE - BERREBZREER
and equipment 21 45
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE  HENRFREZ R
and equipment - )
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEM B AT s - 2)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE Z W
investments (35) -
Shares-based payment expense LARR 1D B AR 2 3R 4 -
(Reverse of) allowance for bad and RIZEE (BEE) B
doubtful debts (1) 1
Losses arising from changes in PTEemIERATFEEHES
fair value of derivative financial BB
instruments 37 7
Interest income for convertible AR B e R 2 B B M A
preferred shares (12) (1)
Operating cash inflows (outflows) KT ZEBE2EHA 2
before movements in working capital &R R A (Fd) 14 (4)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (%) wm (1) 11
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 REMmEUGRIER D ()
other receivables 5 (7)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivable [JEURESE AR 2 E 518
due from an associate (#m) wmd (6) 24
(Increase) decrease in deposits and Be RFEMNZIE () wH
prepayments 2) 5
Increase (decrease) in trade and B REMBEMFIEEN OR)
other payables 4 (9)
(Decrease) increase in bill payables EfTZEE () 8m (3) 1
Increase in deposits and accrued me LEFEREM
expenses 9 11
Cash generated from operations KEFTEIR S 20 32
Income tax paid EATER (1) (1
Interest paid EANEESS (3) 4)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHMBRETFE
ACTIVITIES 16 27
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 &#iZ—Z T/ \EWA=+HI-FE

2008 2007
—EENF “ETLF
Note HK$'M HK$'M
ks BEABT BEETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXHK
Purchase of property, BEWE  HRLEZE
plant and equipment 9) (10)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  HMBENRE
plant and equipment P15 I8 - 1
Proceeds from disposal of HERHIEEREMBHIEA
available-for-sale investments 38 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & [ B A 7 15 78 28 - 2
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBRE (%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFE 29 7)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEH
Other loans raised MEEMER = 22
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITREMER (22) (27)
Net (decrease) increase in trust ERWREBEER D)
receipt loans EINFRE (24) 2
Payment of obligations crystallised BITERETZHER
under guarantees - (3)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHTEREFE
ACTIVITIES (46) (6)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASH ~ HE&RZREREER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R4) #EnFE (1 14
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EzRENZEEREER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 23 9
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZASRZEARESERE
AT END OF YEAR
Representing bank balances and cash  #EIR1TE B MR & 22 23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBE®RXMNHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HE-—ZEE N\FWNA=+HILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacture and sale of integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks and stiffeners and investment holding.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standard, amendment and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™),
which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1st May, 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment
HK(IFRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury

Share Transactions
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HE-—ZEE N\FWNA=+HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has

been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under
the requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and
the relevant comparative information based on the
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has

been presented for the first time in the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of these new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7

(Amendments)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - INT 12

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

HK(IFRIC) - INT 15

HK(IFRIC) - INT 16

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Presentation of Financial
Statements?
Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation?

Reclassification of Financial
Assets*

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate’

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations?
Business Combinations?

Operating Segments?

Service Concession
Arrangements®

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and
their Interaction®

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation’

January, 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

2 ffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,

2009

4 Effective from 1st July, 2008
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2008

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,

2008

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

October, 2008

RMFTREBIT2BRY

BHmEER (@8

Rt
(3T5)
S Lo IEAL:
(7])
3 CE SEPET
(g fe31)
51 e TIET
(msT)
EB g LaEnY
REVH (BFTR)

BAEGIEAE395
REBRBRE

ERIFTH (BIIA)

BEMBREES
FIRREBERG

ERE275% (BRI A)

BRI RS RS
F25% (BRI A

BEMBREE
F35% (RIEFT

BREYMBHREER
F85E

BB (BRMBRE
2EZE®)
—RER125

Bt (ARYMBRS
REZEE)
—BEF135%

BB (BRMBRE
2EZE®)

—REBE14%

8
)
&
)
R

.

E# (BB BHRE
REZE®)
-REE15%

EE(EABRPHRE
Z2EBZE®)
-2EF16%

Ml

|
g

@
B A
e

ong

R
]
b

_\\U-.
%ﬂ'
N
W

ggpér:

T8 G T8 4 =8 4F 93 =8 F ZF 0 55

e

L g Bt B N S e
S5 HF S S HE S HE S N
iy Sy Sy S a3

Sk || || ] | ]
R e e R e I e

= HF
o

“Hﬁ:ﬂj
7!

- o ID
i
SN
ey

| DfF

IO i B
=

| 5

A
wI o m

+

BEMBRERRZ
e
MBHRE 2N

fis & PR AR

A RBLMG
HE

THEERTAR
BREAZEM

CREEZEM

o™
78

R—REMBERF
L[R2 ) B 42 o
NCIPR 80
AR

BB IR R

FHAH
ganEp

R R HE

BP B HE &l

BEGERE195%
-~ REMNGEE
MRE  RIE
BARRE R
EENEL LS

i REWE

BHNEBREFE
2 4

AN

\
m m
>\g7

[
HF
=

—H
—HEZERBZ

A—BRZERAKZ
H—HBRZ®MAKZ

o

annual report 2008 4 55



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HE-—ZEE N\FWNA=+HILFE

3.

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to

the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the

Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Interest in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an

interest in a joint venture.

QPL International Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, interest in an associate is carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets
of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of

the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful

lives, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

3.

FESHEEH)
BEATES ()

MU NFZEEREERAB NS
HEREMANSEARBERE B

BERE RBEQRZER DIEK
AREEEERBBERPIE  UHRE
SETCWBESOHZBEARFEE
ZEEELAE URBETAEH
AlzREER EASE I EEBE
RAZBEEBERNBHERZE S
RAlZER (HpREMRHA#EE -
MzRPAEZEE LBRAEERZ
“““TZ&ééﬁz—% 7) A
AEBTBREBEEREDEZE—F
FER AEEESTHERZBEEZA
AEREELEEIHEERS  IREXZH
REZBER DG 2EINEBIEL
BELERARE

MASEERBENKE ZBE QRS

TRy HEBEaAREEREH
BE AR S RSRME -

M HBERRE

WE - MR MR TR H AR BE 1%

RAFERBRABREBRALR -

WE BENRBEBZFENRE
et A ERFHHE  NEREAME

HIBBEMKA -

ME BEMRBEREERHERLE
BECHZEERMAGELEMA
BREBNERETEER - THBHERE
EEEZEMNBRE (RZERBZHE
FIERBEFREREE MM ERE
BRI BREAZER 2FEF ALK
alEE -

annual report 2008 4 57



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HE-—ZEE N\FWNA=+HILFE

3.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-

out method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transactions cost directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are embedded
derivatives separated from the host contract and other

derivative financial instruments.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or
other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts, and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EETTEEK @)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ¢WMIE(E)
Financial assets (continued) eHEE (E)
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading. Changes in fair values of such

derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including investment in convertible preferred shares —
loan portion, trade and other receivables, trade receivable
due from an associate, bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in

respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss
(see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

QPL International Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of

impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

J default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is

recognised directly in equity.

QPL International Holdings Limited

3.

FESHEE @)

SWMIE(E)

EHEE(E)

EHEEZHE (E)
REBERAARZEREEMS -
WEHEESOFEBEREERE  BIR
EEERERER TREEREE
HIRBERRERFEFE 2B RK
ReRERBEZERFE -

EMATREERBCAERREEE
BEREREEZKREETRELIR
HESRKFERIN  EEEESS
BRBERELINR - BERAZEKE
EEPERNBEETHER -EEHEK
REARERTAREE - EGREE
RAME - 2 A S MEA TR E R
WE - REEaEA -

MIRBHK AR EREENS -
MEBEEBRBREBRESERD M
FRARIEEER LEBRBEREE
ZENAR RILAICHERZBER
BREBEaBE EXEEREE
HEEEAHCREAETNSEERER
BB R 2 B #HAA -

AHHERAKREZHEBRE TSN
H

HeHHaBRa®E - BRRERSR
KA FEAEMEN SEEERE

>t

Em R



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are

generally classified into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating

the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payment through the expected life of the

financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis for debt instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, trust receipt loans and bill payables, and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost. Warrants
issued by the Company that will be settled by a fixed
amount of cash for fixed number of the Company’s own

equity instruments are classified as equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share option granted to employees

The fair value of services rendered determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits (accumulated losses).

64 QPL International Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified

as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed with reference to the sales contracts/

shipping terms.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimate future cash receipts
throughout the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying value.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of transaction. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed

of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling

them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax

is also dealt with in equity.

Borrowings costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future period.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Determining whether property, plant and equipment
are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which property, plant
and equipment have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. A significant assumption used in the calculation of
the impairment is that the Group will maintain its current
level of sales to its major customer of the Company.
Where the actual cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. At 30th April, 2008,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
is HK$122 million. Details of the recoverable amount

calculation are disclosed in Note 14.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

As described in Note 16, the directors of the Company
use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. For derivative
financial instruments, assumptions are made based on
quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed
in Note 16.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXERER
Capital risk management EXxEBER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AREBEBEEAUERAEE ZE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BENEELSE RABEREBLLER
while maximising the return to shareholders through the MEREHERELRIEE RS °
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, REB s EXARBERRFEY B
which includes the borrowings described in Note 24, net MaA24F B2 BE  HKRAS RS
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to FREEBERARRERFTEARNL
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share Em (BREEETHRA  HENES
capital, reserves and accumulated losses. EE) o
The directors of the Company review the capital structure AR EETHEMNERERE -EA
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors BBz -y EEEEEARKAE
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with NEBETRAEBE 2 RE - AEE
the issued share capital. The Group will balance its overall BEBRNREAENTEERKRIET
capital structure through the payment of dividends as well BEMEMPEHELEEEREE -
as obtaining finance from banks, if necessary.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €®IA
Categories of financial instruments T EER
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAET BEETT
Financial assets CREE
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ ER N EKRZE (8£iEHE
and cash equivalents) &%ﬁfﬁﬁlﬁ B) 106 105
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 18 7
Derivative financial instruments eI E 13 50
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised costs PR 71 116
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investment in convertible preferred
shares, trade and other receivables, trade receivable due
from an associate, derivative financial instruments, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, trust receipt
loans and bill payables and borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the

manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its
monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in the functional currency
of respective group entities, which are mainly
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") or United States dollars
("USD"). However, several subsidiaries of the
Company have purchase, expenses and borrowings
transactions which are denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"). Facing the continuous appreciation of
RMB against HK$ and USD, the management
monitors its foreign currency risk on a timely basis
and considers hedging significant foreign currency
exposure when needs arise and benefits outweigh

the cost.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and

€RIA®
HERAREEEEREE (&)

5 EE (&)

(i) EEEE (&)
AEBZFENEHEERE
ERBERBBARZEEE

liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: m
Assets Liabilities
BE &

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBNE _—_ITTLHE ZBENF —_TTLHF
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE#ETR B&ET BEEABTR BEET
RMB AR " 15 25 45

Currency sensitivity analysis BEGURE DT

The following table details the Group’s major
sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase and decrease
in USD against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss where the USD
strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For
a 5% weakening of the USD against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss, and the amounts below would

be negative.

QPL International Holdings Limited
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(1)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Currency sensitivity analysis (continued)

6.

£®TIE®
HEERMEEEERBE (&)

miEER (8)

()

B mbe (&)

ERGRENT (B)

2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEEL BEETT
Loss for the year FEEBRE
RMB (Note) AR® (M) 1 2

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure to
outstanding RMB monetary assets and liabilities

at the year end.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to investment in convertible preferred
shares and fixed-rate bank loan borrowings (see
Notes 16 and 24 for details of these investments
and borrowings respectively). The management will
consider hedging significant fair value interest rate

risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on interest-bearing
financial assets and financial liabilities. Interest-
bearing financial assets are mainly balance with
banks which are short term in nature. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly trust receipt
loans which are arranged at floating rate. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value

interest rate risk.

(ii)

MaE: EETEXRAERFEHDA
BRZARBEBEER
aE-

T B

AEBRSRAIBBRELRZ
RERBEENXRTEENHE
HRAFEMNERR (E@EILSE
REREEZFAR #2502
BIFsE168%24) - EEE R R
TFERERUMEALRFEAM
K@K

AEENTEARFEEREER
TRABNERMMSNEKE
HHRERANEREAR T EE
BMEETERERBRTESK -
ARERMABBEIERFHNE
EREBER AEEZBE
RAF B EBERER AR
ERFEMNERER -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

() Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rate
for non-derivative instruments at the balance
sheet date. For variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 30th April,
2008 would increase/decrease by HK$0.06 million
(2007: increase/decrease by HK$0.3 million).

(iii)  Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk in relation
to its available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments which are measured at fair
value at each balance sheet date. The management
manages this exposure by reviewing these
investments regularly.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that the change in prices had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to price risk for the Group's available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments at that date. A 10% change in equity
prices represent the management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in prices over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.

QPL International Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)
(iii) ~ Equity price risk (continued)
Equity price sensitivity analysis (continued)
If the prices of the respective instruments had been
10% higher/lower and all other variables were held

constant:

o loss for the year ended 30th April, 2008
decrease/increase by approximately HK$3
million (2007: decrease by approximately
HK$4 million and increase by HK$8 million)
as a result of the changes in fair value of

derivative financial instruments; and

o investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2 million (2007: increase/decrease by
approximately by HK$1 million) as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale

investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the derivative
financial instruments involves multiple variables and
certain variables are interdependent. Besides, the year end

exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
as at 30th April, 2008 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying value of those

assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

€RIA®
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s mEE (E)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The amounts of trade receivables presented
in the consolidated balance sheet are net of allowances
for doubtful receivables. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group is responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade and other debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are

made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

However, the Group is exposed to concentration of credit
2008,
approximately 34% (2007: 27%) of trade receivables is

risk on its trade receivables. As at 30th April,

due from an associate.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.

QPL International Holdings Limited

6.

€RMIA
HERREEEEREE (&)

=EmE (E)
AEBZEERBREIERBERE S
RE-HAREEABRENZERE

SHRBANHBARERERIEE -/

EEERRRERRK AEBEZEE
BEREHNIEERE E£TEESEH

KERER H Al B2 2 45 b - A BE R IR ERIR
ER W EEBRN 2 ER - o
AREEREHEEBFEEBHERENE S
REMEBERzATWE S - AR
AN EEREELRAZBERE -

MRRZHETRBEEFNRZIRT
BRBES < EERRESBR -

Al AEBEEHEEZEER
Zﬁ§$¢ﬂh°%:%%ﬂimﬂ
STBEZRERKRESHEBEED  H34%
(Z2ZTHF:27%) RERBE R T
2RI e

mEBELEE
EERRPERRE  NEBHEE
FRFEEBRARREANRE RFR

BeRBHE URAEENEBE
ERFESYRBERESRENPIOF
E-XEEZHRRREMEZAN R
BHRHESTRKUREETHEER
MZzBR BRESZAENRSHAE
TETRMEBAHEHRTHOR
BEE NEMEEHERRERHOR
HELFEK -



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EmIAwm
Financial risk management objectives and policies BHRREEEEREE ()
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEELEE(E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMHIWNAEBR L BRERBZHT
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non- BERINEHER HMETEEREBEM
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn S TRDBEARAEE TN E KN
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial FzuRRHeRmAaGEZATRE S
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group MEMBE - TREFEMNBRAER
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest EME -

and principal cash flows.

Liquidity and interest rate tables RBESRAER
Weighted Repayable Total
average on Less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year cash flows amount
MEFY ZAREXE AERAE
ik HE 1€ R RELR REE
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBT BEAT BEABT

2008 —RENF
Trade and other payables B 5 & H {5 E - - 38 38 38
Trust receipt loans and ERRBETR
bill payables ANES S 5.7 - 10 10 10
Borrowings e 75 10 14 24 23
10 62 72 71
2007 —RELF
Trade and other payables B 5 & H {5 E - - 34 34 34
Trust receipt loans and ERBBEERR
bill payables ANES S 8.2 - 39 39 37
Borrowings e 6.2 10 37 47 45
10 110 120 116
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted

market bid prices; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input. For an option-
based derivative, the fair value is estimated using

option pricing mode.

The carrying amounts of short-term financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate
their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

maturity of these financial instruments.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers less

sales returns and discounts.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Geographical segments

The customers of the Group are currently located in the
United States of America, Hong Kong, Europe, People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), Malaysia, Singapore and other
Asian countries. The geographical locations of the Group'’s
customers are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segmental information.

QPL International Holdings Limited
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. TEHER &\
Geographical segments (continued) HESI(E)
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30th HEZZTEN\FEA=THLEFEZ
April, 2008 e s
United Other
States of Asian
Ameria  Hong Kong Europe PRC Malaysia ~ Singapore ~ countries ~ Consolidated

£t
8 BR i %8 FREE fng EMEX &4
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
REETN  REET  REEN  EEEn REER  EBER  EBEn  AEER

TURNOVER gz

Seqment turnover AHesE 3 19 3 69 Iy u 8 E£)]
RESULT 4

Seqment resul e 2 1 - 8 3 3 10 )]

Depreciation of property, plantand 7% + E&R

equipment REAE (28)
Impairment loss on property, hE BERRE

olant and equipment LREER (1)
Losses arising fiom changes in fiEeRIA

fair value of derivaive financial ATERD

instruments EL/ER (37)
Inteest income for convertible ThEELRL

preferted shares HEMA 1
Gain on disposal of avallbleforssle B ETEEERE

investments blc: 3%
Unallocated sundry income ROREENA 1
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLERR (17)
Intrest on bank and other loans BRRERLY

wholly repayable within EEZ&TR

fve years EHERZHE )
Share of los of an associate MiBELAER (12)
Loss before taration BiNER ()
Tasation HB (1
Loss for the year 1ERER (44)
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i,

8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7oHER(H
Geographical segments (continued) ESI(E)
Consolidated balance sheet at 30th April, 2008 RZZEENFONAZ+THZRAEE
BEX
United Other
States of Asian
America  Hong Kong Europe PRC Malaysia ~ Singapore ~ countries  Consolidated

£t
8 BR i %8 FREE iy EMEX &4
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
FEET  REET  EEET  EEEn  REER  EEEn  EEEn  AEER

ASSETS &k

Seqment assets APEE 6 # 1 1 6 2 16 8
Property, plant and equipment 0% BERGE 12
Inventories BE 3
Bank balances and cash BligBRES 0
Other unallocated assets ERIREE 3
Consolidated total assets GREELE 30
LIABILITIES |

Unallocated liabilties FokAE 10
Consolidated tota ibilties GREESE 120
In view of segment information is disclosed based on the HROHERDERAEBEFAE
geographical locations of the Group’s customers, capital wmEH B2 \FOA=+
addition of HK$9 million for the year ended 30th April, HIEFE 29,000,000 TEARE
2008 is unallocated. BRADE -
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEER (&)
Geographical segments (continued) ESI(E)
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30th HE-_ZTT+FNHNA=THLEFEZ
April, 2007 e s
United Other
States of Asian
Ameria  Hong Kong Europe PRC Malaysia ~ Singapore ~ countries  Consolidated

Rt
xE i Bt %8 RARE g ENEX fa
KM HKSM HKS M HKS M HKSM HKS M HKSM KM
FBEr  EEEL  REEm  BEEn  BERn  EBET  ABEM  BERI

TURNOVER EXE
Seqment turnover AHesE 3 107 2 )] 4 2 6 308
RESULT 28
Seqment resul LS 4 1 4 1
Depreciation of property plantand 7% BER A

equipment g (44)
Impairment loss on property, hE BERREL

olant and equipment HEER (#)
Losses arising fiom changes in fieRIA

fair value of derivaive financial ATERD

instruments ErEE (7
Inteest income for convertible ThEELRL

preferted shares HEKA 1
Gain on disposal of property, plant~~~ EW% - BERRE

and equipment bl ¢ 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidary nE-MELT A 2
Unallocated sundry income FORRENA 2
Unallocated corporate expenses FAELERY (24)
Interest on bank and other loans BREEMRY

wholly repayable within EEZ&R

fve years B ERZHE (@
Share of los of an associate AMikeLaER (M
Loss before taration hRNER (102
Tatation BB 2
Loss for the year 1ERER (81)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REHMBRXMNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 #HZ=ZF \FWNA=+HIFE

8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7oHER(H
Geographical segments (continued) ESI(E)
Consolidated balance sheet at 30th April, 2007 RZEELtFNAZTHZEEEE
BEX
United Other
States of Asian
America  Hong Kong Europe PRC Malaysia ~ Singapore  countries  Consolidated

4
X B B %8 RAEE FmE ENEX fa
HKS M HKSM K HKS M HKSM KM HKSM HKS M
EEET  BERT  BERT  BEAT  BEAT  EEET  RERR BEAT

ASSETS EE

Seqment assets APEE ] 3 - 1 9 3 1 8
Property, plant and equipment 0% BERGE 162
Inventories FE 3
Bank balances and cash Raskie 3
Other unallocated assets ERAREE 6
Consolidated total assets GAEENE 365
LIABILITIES 8k

Unallocated liabilties FOlAE 156
Consolidated total libilies LABRYE 156
In view of segment information is disclosed based on the AR BERDERAEBRFME
geographical locations of the Group’s customers, capital WmEHE SEZE_TTLFOA=+
addition of HK$10 million for the year ended 30th April, HIEHFE 210,000,000 TERRKE
2007 is unallocated. BRANE -
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7oHER(H
Geographical segments (continued) HED (&)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of REEEMES Dz EEREA
segment assets and additions to property, plant and BEEANEYWE WRNREBZ DWW
equipment, analysed by geographical area in which the T

assets are located:
Carrying amount Additions to property,

of segment assets plant and equipment

PTHREEREE WEME KBERZE
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE —TITt+HF ZBBENFE —TTLH
HK$'M HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M
BEART BEAETT BEBAR BEATT
United States of America  X& 1 1 - -
Hong Kong BB 89 84 = -
PRC as 158 197 9 10
248 282 9 10

Business segment ER 3

The Group operates solely the manufacture and sale of

integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners.

AEBEELERENHEERKNERS

BRAE

HABFLMBRZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REHMBRXMNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 #HZ=ZF \FWA=+HIFE
i,

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfelr A
2008 2007
—EENF —ZTTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEABT BEETT
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERTHIHERE
investments 2 Was 35 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MBAR .z M=
(Note 28) (P 5%28) - 2
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME -« #ERHE
equipment 2 Was - 1
Interest income for convertible preferred A AR B ST AR 2 B B IR
shares (Note) (B3E) 12 11
Sales of by-products and scrap BlEmMEREE 30 25
Sundry income FIEWA 1 2
78 41
Note: The amount includes approximately HK$8 million (2007: Ma: LEELEATRRELERZAE
HK$7 million) interest income from convertible preferred g A 498,000,000 T (Z 2 Z +
shares, which was received in form of ordinary shares of % :7,000,000% 7t) + I LAASAT
ASAT Holdings Limited (“ASAT"). Holdings Limited ([ ]) 2 &

37 A T = URER
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10.

TAXATION BIE

2008 2007
—EENFE ZTTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEBL BEAT

The (charge) credit comprises: HME(ZL) EeaE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REIREREH (1) (M

Overprovision of other jurisdiction NEFEEMANERER
in prior years Z BB - 22
(1) 21

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the individual companies comprising the Group have no
estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong for
both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law
of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law")
by Order No.63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th
December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations has changed the tax
rates from 33% to 25% and 15% to 25% progressively
over 5 years for certain subsidiaries from 1st January,
2008.

R A & B 2 @ Bl & B R R E 4 E
BEREE Fiﬁaﬂéaﬁﬂﬁﬂ'ﬁﬂi
BERBENEHRELEE -

REMAEZERELE ZHBRE A
FRERERZHEGE

R_EELF= H+/\Ei ‘:F‘.J//\‘:F‘
BEE<Re3RBMPBECEMEH
E(#FBED - RZZEZLE+_H
NB B E B g R AOR B R
Bloe RBBHBREREREH  &EFHW
“"TZ%R H_TTN\F—-H—H
FU33% THE25% - 5 THEB LA
ZMEARAFANBIS%RE NS LHE
25% ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HEZE-—EE N\FWNA=+HIFE

10.

TAXATION (continued)

The overprovision amounted to HK$22 million in last
year represented a reversal of provision of income tax
on a gain arising from reorganisation of the Group in
1999, calculated based on the prevailing tax rate at the
jurisdiction. For the year ended 30th April, 2007, the
directors had made a reassessment of the income tax
liability in light of the 6-year statute of limitation rule
under the jurisdiction and were of the opinion that it was
more likely than not that said tax liability will be settled
and accordingly, the amount of income tax provided was
reversed.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per consolidated income statement as

10.

BIE )

£ 4 A #22,000,00058 7T 7 B B
EAEBN—NAANERTEEME
R FREREBEGEZRE  NIEE
REREEZRIREHE - REE -
TE+EMA=+AILEE EEE
BEZASRE 2 AERERIZ
SEFIGAEREE BRAEAEA
ETASELRABBER  FEuiEE
BREZFREHLE -

AFEERBEESWERMINZHRHR
BB HERET

follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEET
Loss before taxation B 0 Al B 18 (43) (102)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BEBMNEBRHEIT.5%
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) (ZEZLF 1 17.5%)
HEZHIE 8 18
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ A HIFFSZ 2 R FE
for tax purpose (12) 9)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERRBAZ BB E
for tax purpose 9 2
Tax effect of non-allowable losses of BEEEB 2 A MBEE
offshore operation ZHBRE (1) (2)
Effect of different tax rates of RABEE 2 HEAETE
subsidiaries operating in PRC MEzZE (1) (1
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~RHERBMFEE 2 HBEFE (2) (7)
Overprovision in prior years N FERBEEE - 22
Effect of share of loss of an associate D HEE A REEZFE (2) (2)
Tax (charge) credit for the year AEERA(ZH)#EE (1) 21

BRFEARRNGEER ZEEMIAF
BER K27

Details of deferred taxation for the years and at the
balance sheet date are set out in Note 27.
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. XFEBR
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT
Loss for the year has been arrived REEEED MR T
at after charging: £IF

(Reverse of) allowance for bad and RIZER (D) B

doubtful debts (1) 1
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B & 2 2
Operating lease rentals in respect BFzeXHOEeTH

of premises 13 13

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. EREBRE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to BARIEEREEABEBEERERNE
the ordinary equity holders of the parent is based on the B TH e E
following data:
2008 2007
b2 A8 e
Loss for the purposes of basic loss BRFESRERERL

per share EE HK$44AMBEEBE T HKISIMEEBTT
Weighted average number of BUGESREAEBRZ

ordinary shares for the purpose of Ld R

calculating basic loss per share 767,303,534 767,244,211
The calculation of diluted loss per share for both years TEMFEzEREEEER X TR
does not assume the exercise of the share options and BRITFEARR 2 ERER R ERE
warrants of the Company because such assumption would RUBEEEBHEBREBR Y -

result in a decrease in loss per share.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE
i,

13. DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EEREEME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2007: PENEENTERE (ZEELF: AE)
five) directors were as follows: EEgEaZHMemT
Robert
Kevin Robert Charles Alex
TLLi KT Kwan TT Sze  Nicholson ~ CB Wong Total
ZRE A £ 5 LEH REE IRA By
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEET AEBET BEET AEAT BEET ABEAR

2008 “EENE
Fees e 12.2 - 0.5 0.4 0.3 13.4
Other emoluments His B4
Salaries and other FekEM
benefits =l - 1.7 0.1 0.1 0.1 2.0
Share-based payment AR A E TS
PASE - 07 - - - 07
12.2 2.4 0.6 0.5 04 16.1
2007 2
Fees we 19.2 - 0.5 0.4 0.3 20.4
Other emoluments Hivi 4
Salaries and other HeREM
benefits &7 - 1.5 - - - 1.5
19.2 1.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 21.9
The emoluments payable to directors of the Company BRARBRIEEZME 2 EHME
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of B HBEREBREESENRARA
the remuneration committee, are having regard to their AR REBE TEHFWMEER
individual duties and responsibilities with the Company, ERTIRESEeE -

remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing

market conditions.
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13. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EEREEM S (@
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) EEME (E)
In both years, no emoluments were paid or payable to RREFEFERN AEBEYELFEN
the directors as an inducement to join the Company and IENTFTESCMESERMALRR A
no compensation was paid or payable to directors or past ZHM - MEDENSKEN TEEHA
directors for loss of office. EEZRERAEE-
Employees’ emoluments EEME
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals T4 EeFMALTEEmE (22T
included two (2007: two) executive directors of the +tE - WME) KRB HITES © HEN
Company, whose emoluments are included in above. The eEIREX HEBR=%2(ZZFZ L
aggregate emoluments of the remaining three (2007: F:=ZR)EedMALzHER2E
three) highest paid individuals are as follows: wmr
2008 2007
—EENFE ZTTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEBL BEAT

Basic salaries, allowances and other EARFS 2B REM

benefits-in-kind EYHla 5 4
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEME T THAER -

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLHF

Number of Number of

employees employees

EBEAE EEAH

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L — 1,500,000/ 7T 1 3

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/87C —2,000,0007% 7T 2 -

3 3
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CoST

At 1st May, 2006
Additions

Disposals and write-offs

At 30th April, 2007
Additions
Disposals and write-offs

At 30th April, 2008

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSS

At 1st May, 2006

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

Eliminated on disposals
and write-offs

At 30th April, 2007

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

Eliminated on disposals
and write-offs

At 30th April, 2008

CARRYING VALUES
At 30th April, 2008

At 30th April, 2007

14, ¥ HBEERE

Furniture, Moulds,
fixtures toolings and
Leasehold and Motor Plant and production
improvements  equipment vehicles machinery films Total
I#-I8
B RE BER REE
ES ] SET - B3] RER By
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
A
RZEE ERA-H 72 167 3 659 353 1,254
HE - 1 - 3 6 10
HHE R 3K - - - - (5) (5)
RZEE+ERAZTE 72 168 3 662 354 1,259
AE - - - 4 5 9
HE R - - - (9) - 9)
RZEENERAZTE 72 168 3 657 359 1,259
EANERAERSE
R-ZEAFRA-A 50 156 2 476 329 1,013
AEERE 5 5 - 28 6 44
REBE - - - 41 4 45
& R KR 35
- - - - (5) (5)
RZZZLEMA=TH 55 161 2 545 334 1,097
AERRRE 4 4 - 16 4 28
HEBR - - - 20 1 21
HHE R A A3
- - - (9) - 9)
RZEEN\ERA=+A 59 165 2 572 339 1137
REE
R-BENEBAZTH 13 3 1 85 20 12
R-BZLEMA=TH 17 7 1 17 20 162
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14. 14, ¥ #BBRREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful

lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 8 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 6 - 12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

During the year, the directors conducted a review of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and determined
that a number of those assets were impaired due to
the redundance of plant and machinery. Accordingly,
impairment losses of HK$21 million (2007: HK$45 million)
have been recognised in respect of plant and machinery.

The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering a 7-year
period, and discount rate of 16% (2007:16%). Cash
flows beyond four-year period is extrapolated using a zero

growth rate.

tamE - #HERFREIBRBTINE
BEAZEERE EURFHEAT

MELE 84
B EEREE S5EQHE
E 54
W LG 6124
I# ITAREERKAR 64F

FR EZSHAEEZ2WE - #B
REBETRS BETHEHPETE
ERRZHOMBERZEN LR
BBt EREBERSERERRE
&5 1821,000,0008 L (Z T T L F
45,000,000 7T) °

EREEZNKRBeEHERZEZE
ENCHAEEMEE - Lt EEAR
BEREHATRELFH IV BE
ENBRESREFNURI6RN (ZEF
TF16%) 2R K - B iR M FH
CHERERNTHERERE o

annual report 2008 4 91



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE
i,

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. BHE N RER
2008 2007
—BENE —ET+F
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBRT BEET
Listed investment outside Hong Kong BB ETHRE

Cost of investment (Note 9) BEKA (H:9) 19 11

Share of post-acquisition losses DB R 2 BB R HEE
and reserves (19) (11)
Fair value of listed investment TR EZAFEE 59 176

92

Interest in an associate represents the Group’s 42.88%
(2007: 42.48%) interest in the issued ordinary share
capital of ASAT, a limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares listed on the NASDAQ
prior to 17th April, 2008. ASAT and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of assembly and
testing of integrated circuits.

In January 2008, ASAT received several letters from the
NASDAQ Staff stating its non-compliance with NASDAQ
continuing listing requirements, including maintaining the
market value of its listed securities over USD35 million,
its shareholders’ equity of above USD2.5 million and
its net income of at least USD500,000 from continuing
operations for the most recently completed fiscal year or
two of the last three most recently completed fiscal years.
If compliance cannot be demonstrated by the stipulated
dates, ASAT's securities will be delisted. In February 2008,
ASAT lodged an appeal hearing before the NASDAQ
Listing Qualifications Panel (the “Panel”) to avoid such
delisting. On 25th March, 2008, ASAT received a notice
from the Panel determining the delisting of ASAT's
securities from the NASDAQ market and the trading of its
shares will be suspended at the open of business on 27th
March, 2008. On 17th April, 2008, ASAT announced that
its American Depository Shares (“ADS”) started trading
on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol
“ASTTY.OB"” and delisted from NASDAQ.

QPL International Holdings Limited

BENTEREASEMERNHASE
SEEMALBERABLENEET
LB AR242.88% (ZTZHF
42.48% ) HEwm X ZBRORZE
ZENENA+LAMEEREHES
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Mo BEXRENBAR T BIRHE
FX B B& HE B ROB B BR 7S o

RZEBEENF— R SR EE
NASDAQBt B Z i ik R E K
BERANASDAQZ FE LR E (B
#RE FMESH L ME35,000,000
FoAE - HRFE# % E2,500,000
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HOMEZTEVERFEFEREFELE
EB WA FERAD500,000E7T) °
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15.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following details have been extracted from the

unaudited consolidated management accounts of ASAT

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the

BeENTER®E)

MTERDREEREXRERES
AEMAERMcBEENBRS ERR
RZARERHFAETERE ¢

HKICPA:
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEBT
Financial position B AR R
Non-current assets EMBEE 485 669
Current assets MBEE 390 346
Current liabilities mBAE (453) (442)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (1,302) (1,380)
Net liabilities FRE (880) (807)
Group’s share of net liabilities of KREES B ZE QT
the associate FAE - -
Results for the year KEFHEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZTTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT
Turnover | 1,215 1,289
Loss for the year REEEE (128) (283)
Group’s share of result of the REBHSGMARFE
associate for the year iRl /NE] e - (12) (1)
The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share KREBD IIBHAZEMDHLEK X

of losses of ASAT. The unrecognised share of losses for
the year amounted to HK$43 million (2007: HK$109
million) and the accumulated unrecognised share of losses
amounted to HK$383 million (2007: HK$340 million).

CEB - AFERTERAZOLE
18 /43,000,000 L (ZE T L F:
109,000,000 7T) R 2t R THRAZ
165 &5 18 5383,000,0008 L (Z T F
+ 4 : 340,000,000/ 7T) °

annual report 2008 4 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REHBRXMNWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

16. INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED 16. ATRREERRE T£2

SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL BmTH
INSTRUMENTS
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
Investment in convertible preferred shares — AJ #[% & L AR IR E
— loan portion —BXREH 38 34
Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost W DR ZEIEBL
of investment HIZERAK (38) (34)
Derivative financial instruments: PTEEMT A :
Investment in convertible preferred shares AR E L IRIEE
— conversion option — R R 12 45
Investment in warrants RREBRE 1 5
13 50
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16. 16. ATRREEARRE T4 £

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

In July 2005, the Company entered into a securities
purchase agreement with Asia Opportunity Fund, L.P.
and its affiliate funds (“AOF"), which held approximately
28.9% of the issued ordinary shares of ASAT, and ASAT
in relation to a USD15 million financing (equivalent
to approximately HK$117 million) for ASAT, of which
the Group contributed USD7.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$58 million). ASAT issued 300,000
convertible preferred shares for a total price of USD15
million (equivalent to approximately HK$117 million),
representing an issue price of USD50 per convertible
preferred share, to be purchased by AOF and the Group
in equal proportions. In October 2005, the Group invested
USD7.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$58
million) for 150,000 convertible preferred shares for
the equivalent amount at an issue price of USD50 per
convertible preferred share at a preferred dividend rate of
13% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. Each
convertible preferred share will, at any time and from
time to time, be convertible, at the option of the holder,
into ordinary shares of ASAT at an adjusted conversion
price resetting equal to USD0.065 per ordinary share
(equivalent to USD0.975 per ADS), subject to customary
adjustment for share splits, dividends, re-combinations
and similar transactions. The contractual exercise period
for conversion option is from 27th October, 2005 to 4th
May, 2011.

mIAE)

RZEZETRFLH ARQFHEHAsia
Opportunity Fund, L.P.J; H BB &
2 ([AOF] " HAEHKRXBDBITE
B A28.9% ) R &Kk X H A RIK
N & %15,000,000% 7t (HERY
117,000,000 T) (AR AEEHE
7,500,0003 7t (48 & 7 458,000,000
BT UEFBEHZE - BHRE
174 {8 1% /&15,000,000% 7t (HE R
#7117,000,000% 7t) 2300,0000% A]
BRREER(NBETERERATBRK
BER50E L) - BAOFR AN & B X
SHLPBE R-_TTRFTA -
AEEERBETEERITBRRKRELER
50% T K 47,500,000% 7T (HHE R
58,000,000/ 7T ) # A 150,0000% A #
BRELRKR BERREEXEFI13% -
B¥FHMN - SRATERE LR ATHE
HETRBESAAZERAZERESE
RIREGREBAR0.065E T (HE
RERBFLESR0975%T) B a
SR zERR MZEEARKN
FE-RE EFEHRAERSE
HEFAR BREEROEHNTE
HAE_TERF+A-TLRE=Z
——&ARAMA -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

16. 16. ARREEARRE T4 $

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

At any time on or after 4th May, 2011, ASAT shall, at the
option of the Group, redeem, in whole or in part, any
outstanding convertible preferred shares, in cash. The put
option embedded in the convertible preferred shares is
not separated at the grant date since the strike price of
the put option is approximately equal to the amortised
cost of convertible preferred shares after separating the
embedded conversion option on each exercise date.
Subject to the terms of an indenture of ASAT dated
26th January, 2004 in relation to its 9.25 percent high
yield note, the convertible preferred shares shall be
redeemable, in cash, at the option of ASAT, in whole
or in part, at any time at a price per share equal to the
higher of (i) the issue price, plus an amount equal to the
accrued and unpaid preferred shares dividends to the date
of redemption; and (ii) the aggregate fair market value
of ASAT's ordinary shares into the which the convertible
preferred shares are convertible. The borrowing cost
applicable to ASAT was estimated at 36% per annum
which implies the call option is deeply out of money. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the call
option was immaterial at initial recognition and each
subsequent balance sheet date.

By way of arrangement fee, ASAT has agreed to issue
to each of the Group and AOF five-year warrants to
purchase 2.5 million ordinary shares, exercisable at a price
of USD0.01 per ordinary share (equivalent to USDO0.15
per ADS). In addition, ASAT issued to each of the Group
and AOF an additional five-year warrants to purchase 7.5
million ordinary shares, exercisable at a price of USD0.01
per ordinary share (equivalent to USD0.15 per ADS).
Accordingly, the Group was issued warrants to subscribe
for a total of 10 million ordinary shares of ASAT. On issue
of the warrants, no sums are payable to ASAT by the
Group. The consideration of the Group was in form of
the conversion, on a dollar-for-dollar basis, of its account
receivable due from ASAT on 27th October, 2005. The
contractual exercise period for warrants is from 27th
October, 2005 to 27th October, 2010.
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ISR
16. INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED 16. TRBREBEARRE T£2

SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL =N

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the straight loan feature of the ABRELRZEEEREG I H
convertible preferred shares was determined by using HATFTEDRE —HAEREEEF
discounted cash flow calculation based upon a group of BREEZEBELTE ARG TR
debt instruments with similar credit rating and structure HHE S HSE  EAFTRES T
and the observable financial data of ASAT. The effective EEET BEEERUEZVIHER
interest rate for the straight loan feature was estimated at BERNEGFAREBFION -

36% per annum at initial recognition.

The fair value of the conversion option of the convertible A ¥R BB S I 2 R Ry iR i R N R
preferred shares and the warrants were determined by EORATFENEAZEBEAERNEE -

using binomial model.

Key inputs into the binomial model were as follows: —HEABRAZFETENT
At 30th At 30th
April, 2008 April, 2007

R-ZENE R-TTLHF
MA=+H MA=+H

Share price M (e usD 0.35 UsD 1.096
0.35% T 1.0963% 7T

Volatility of share price IR B IR 120% 90%
Risk free rate 4 [B] [ 1| & 2.49% 4.525%
Dividend yield B% B & 0% 0%
Option life of conversion option BMIREERE AREFH 3 years 4 years
3F A%

Option life of warrants RIRHEE 2 AR F H 2.5 years 3.5 years
2.5%F 3.5
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 & Z—
.S

16.

17.

ZZ\FOA=FTHLEFE

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED  16. AR EBERKRE T4 2
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL =N
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 30th April, 2008, the fair values of the conversion R-ZZBEZSTNEMA=+H " BHEBE
option of the convertible preferred shares and the BEIEBERBER AT (—XKXBILEH
warrants valued by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, BREEMGAEMT) GEZTBRRKREL
a firm of independent international assets valuers, BReBERAREZERARESE 2
amounted to approximately USD1.5 million (2007: USD5.8 NEESD R A1,500,000F T (=
million) or equivalent to approximately HK$12 million T T+ 4 5,800,000k 7m) skl E
(2007: HK$45 million) and approximately USD0.2 million R %712,000,0008 T (Z T L F -
(2007: USDO0.7 million) or equivalent to approximately 45,000,000/% 7T) & #) £200,0003%
HK$1 million (2007: HK$5 million) respectively, resulting in T (ZZZE+F :700,000E 5T) 3 48
losses arising from changes in fair values of approximately E R 41,000,000 L (ZEZ £ F
HK$37 million (2007: HK$7 million) recognised in the 5,000,000/ 7C) - A AT EEHELE
consolidated income statement. 2 E518#937,000,0008 7t (Z T T+
% 17,000,000/ 7T) RER A WaE R T
R -
INVENTORIES 17. #&
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEETT
Raw materials and consumables JRH Ko 7 m 26 26
Work in progress F R G 7
Finished goods BUAK T 5 6
38 37
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. ESZRHMERKE

2008 2007

—EENF “ETLF

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBT ABET

Trade receivables Z 5 W FRIE 54 61
Less: Allowance for bad and W RIEBERBE

doubtful debts (3) (4)

51 57

Other receivables H i W 518 6 4

57 61

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 REBBLFTESIREEPZEESHN T30
ZF90R - REHRAH - B 5 EWKIE

MBERERBEBREDTOT

days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for bad and

doubtful debts at the reporting date:

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

HK$'M HK$'M

BEAER BEET

Within 30 days 308 A 25 25
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 15 16
Between 61 and 90 days 61%290H 10 6
Over 90 days 90H A £ 1 10
51 57
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will apply
an internal credit assessment policy to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by
customer. Management closely monitors the credit quality
of trade receivables and considers the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good
credit quality. Included in the Group’s trade receivable
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$12M (2007: HK$26M) which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors which

are past due but not impaired:

18.

E5KHMEWRRE @
RNEMNTRTEE  AEEE LN
MEEFZIRE AREEPZ
T HBRWHITHEEPZEER -
BERYEREIRRREZEE
BEX TERARUESHTEREZ
BoRURBABRIGEEER - K
SEESREURELHT  BEERR
#1{E/412,000,0008C (ZETL5F:
26,000,000 7T) R R ¥ A B E &
MASEETAREHREEBREEZX
BoAEBUEFUEAEKRIBTAEM
WHG o

il

o

] T N5 S

\

ERPETERECESEKRFEAEY
REROMMMT -

2008 2007

—EENF ZETLF

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEET

Within 90 days past due BHEI90 A A 11 20
Over 90 days past due BHEA90H LA b 1 6
Total &t 12 26

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables which are past due but not impaired are

generally recoverable.
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18.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. ESZRHMEKKE )
The following is a movement in the allowance for bad and RERBEZEZHUT -
doubtful debts:
2008 2007
—EENF T
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBTT
At 1st May RAH—H 4 3
(Reverse of) allowance for bad and FER (BO) BE
doubtful debts (1) 1
At 30th April ROA=+H 3 4
Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are RIZERBERBIERL# 53,000,000
individually impaired trade receivables with aggregate BT (ZEZ+HF 4,000,000 L)
balance of HK$3 million (2007: HK$4 million) which have ZERHEEZ S ERKIE  BERR
been in severe financial difficulties. ANBEREE KN E -
TRADE RECEIVABLE DUE FROM AN 19. ERBE QAR ZE ZNE

ASSOCIATE
The Group allows a credit period of 90 days to its

AEBEHETHE LR ZEEH R0

associate. The following is an aged analysis of trade H-REZER EBlREtE A RE SR
receivable due from an associate, which are non-interest B(TEHE)ZERTWT :
bearing, at the balance sheet date:
2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEETT
0 - 90 days 0&90H 27 14
Over 90 days 90H KA - 7
27 21

Included in the Group’s trade receivable due from an
associate with aggregate carrying amount of HK$nil
(2007: HK$7M) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. Based on the historical experience of the Group,
trade receivable due from an associate is past due but not
impaired are generally recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

FAEEBRKBMERR ZESRIEH -
BIEREAREASAEL(ZEZTLF
7,000,000 7T) R A i 2 @
mMASEEL RIELREBEBEB 2K
B -REAEE &R C@BMEY

BRECERBE AR CEHRIE—
ﬂx‘MH&z@ N ETR Wl
Tﬂﬁ&ﬂﬁ#ﬁuu °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ-_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE
i,

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AHBEERE
2008 2007
=t -1 J1¥:3 —TTHE
HK$'M HK$'M
HEBT BEST

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, & FmRAZEFH -

at fair value mAYE 18 7
As at the balance sheet date, the available-for-sale RNeEE R Iy EHER N TEET
investments are stated at fair value, which have been BE - I%%/éﬁgmtﬁﬁﬁiﬁ;\)\{ﬁﬁﬁ%
determined based on bid prices quoted in active markets. E o

Particulars of the investee company are as follows: MISE AR ZHEBWOT

Proportion of

nominal value of

Place of Class of issued share capital
Name of company incorporation Principal activities shares held held by the Group
FEERG rEEfBERL
AEER kil B 2 3t B TEXER 285 ERTRAHEELH
Melco LottVentures Cayman Islands Provision of network Ordinary shares 4%
Limited (“Melco") infrastructure
(formerly known as solutions and
Wafer Systems Limited) services
MERVER QA FEeHs RUEMEER EREL 4%
([FRRY ] - A8 BRAER
HEZRZHERAA) R#%
Melco is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise HMRRY AMTHAI YRz ET AT -

Market of the Stock Exchange.

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21, RTEBRAS
The bank balances of the Group carried at prevailing NEE ZHRITEBRIEET0.72%23%
market interest rates ranging from 0.72% to 3% (2007: (ZET+E :0.70%%3% ) 2 @1T
0.70% to 3%) per annum. SRR S o
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. EZRHEMEMNRIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, based BIBEZHNRA  EZEMRERNE
on the payment due dates, at the balance sheet date: BRAZERERAWNWAT :
2008 2007
—EBENE —EELF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEETT
Trade payables B 5 B RIE
Within 30 days 30HA 11 9
Between 31 and 60 days 31£60H 5 7
Between 61 and 90 days 61E90H 5
Over 90 days 90 KAk 8 4
28 25
Other payables Hh f& < FIE 10 9
38 34
The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from BEZEZEHA30R290H « AEEFE
30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk management B ERBERRE WHEFRAERN
policies in place to ensure that all payables within the FBETEBEEEHR

credit timeframe.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e HBRXMNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE
i,

23. TRUST RECEIPT LOANS AND BILL PAYABLES 23. Xk EEZRENEE

2008 2007

—BENE —ETLF

HK$'M HK$'M

BEAT BEET

Trust receipt loans ERBEER 6 30

Bill payables AN 4 7

10 37
At the balance sheet date, bill payables are non-interest REEZER  BNEET L R
bearing and aged within 30 days. Trust receipt loans carry BI30BUA - EEWEBEERZEBR
a variable interest rate of HIBOR and Prime Rate and the TRERBELEFEERENERLZE R X
effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted R CHBERAME (HERAHFEX)
interest rates) ranging from 5% to 9% (2007: 6% to 9%) NTEF5%ZEI% (ZFEZTLF 6%

per annum. £9%) °
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24. BORROWINGS 24. B8
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEET
Secured long term loans repayable BAR—FRERZAER
within one year (Note a) EHER (Kita) 13 35
Loans from a director repayable on HARBRKEBEZEEER
demand (Note b) (P EED) 10 10
23 45
Notes: B
(a) The loans are secured by certain plant and equipment of (a) WEFUAARER 7 & TH#eE MK
the Group. TEIR A o
(b) The loans are advanced from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a director (b) BERTBEARAEERETERRE
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, which are R%LEEEL ARB - ERER
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. REREE -
The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal AEE AEBZETMNXREEZH
to contracted interest rates) on the Group's fixed rate MAE (HERGHOMNE)NTEFS%
borrowings is ranging from 5% to 9% per annum for the 2% (ZEZTLF  BF5%=29%) °
current year (2007: 5% to 9% per annum).
The Group’'s borrowings that are denominated in KREBEERABEBREBRER 2
currencies other than the functional currencies of the EBUIN 2 EBEBMHERINBAT
relevant group entities are set out below:
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAERL BEET
RMB AR 12 35
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ-_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE
i,

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. B
Number of shares Nominal Value
RH#E H{E
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE e a3 ZBENF —Z2TtH
HK$'M HK$'M
BEETR BEATL
Authorised: EEBRA
Ordinary shares of SREE0.08%E T
HK$0.08 each LER
At beginning and FOR
end of year FiR 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 120 120
Redeemable preference BRMEE.02ETL
shares of HK$0.02 each AEEEER 500,000,000 500,000,000 10 10
Issued and fully paid: ERTREERA
Ordinary shares of SREE0.08%E T
HK$0.08 each LRk
At beginning of year F9 767,244,211 767,244,211 61 61
Issue upon exercise PTE IR R
of warrants BT 109,338 - - -
At end of year FER 767,353,549 767,244,211 61 61

Warrants

During the year ended 30th April, 2008, registered holders
of 109,338 warrants exercised their rights. At 30th April,
2008, the outstanding warrants of HK$232,535,389
entitling the holders thereof to subscribe for 130,637,859
ordinary shares at an initial subscription price of HK$1.78

per share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) were
lapsed on 14th October, 2008.

1 06 QPL International Holdings Limited

AR EH
REBEE-ZTTEN\FHNA=THLFE
W F109,3380 RIREE 2 i #F
BATEREZEN RZZZNF
MA=+H  RAFRHMKRITEZRR
R IE232,535,3898 L ZERK
REREFEAKRSR.788 T (7]
RERBEEMELAR) 2N T RE
B# 130,637,859 ERK - %5
REEFER =TT NF+A+HTEA
R o



26. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 26. RO EBR#ME
Retained
Capital ~ Investment Share profits
Share  Contributed  redemption  revaluation options  Translation ~ (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total

§1%E  RREM ] EX  REEN
Rk RAER (1] i (1] % (RER) LH
HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M
BERT  AREAT  RERT  RERT  RERT  RERR  REER  BEAT

(Note)
(H3t)

At 1st May, 2006 HW-25rERA-A 148 40 12 {2) - (1) 2 24
Bichange diferences arsngon - EENERFEEZ

translation of foreign operations 2% - - - - - f - f
Gaing on fair value changes of ~ TREERENTESY

avallable-for-sale investments bt} - - - 4 - - - 4
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - 81) (81)
Total recognised income (expenses)  EREEZMA (BR)

for the year g - - - 4 - 1 (81) (76)
At 30th Apri, 2007 WoERLERAZTE 148 4 12 1 - - (54) 148
Reserve released upon disposal of ~ HETHHERAREN

avalablefor-sale investments LHE - - - 1 - - - (1)
Gains on fair value changes of [ BEREATEEY

avallable-for-sale investments i - - - 15 - - - 15
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - (44) (44)
Total recognised income (expenses)  ERZEZMN (BR)

for the year ok - - - 14 - - (44) (30
Recognition of equity-settled BIRTEE IR

share-ased payment BERE {3 - - - - 4 - - 4
At 30th Aprl 2008 HoBENERBZE 108 « 1 16 4 - (98 0
Note: Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net Wit ERAEKEMUEBHNEAREESF

assets of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of ERaAANGEAEBREET
the Company’s shares issued as consideration. Mty 2 HEZEEE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ-_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

27.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
At the balance sheet date and during the year, deferred
tax liabilities (assets) have been recognised in respect of

the temporary differences attributable to the following:

27.

ELEBRB AR

REAARER AEBERUTH
BrEREERRELHEEE (E
E)

Accelerated

tax Tax

depreciation losses Total

MEBIERTE BKEE “Et

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEAET BEET BEET

At 1st May, 2006 RZZEZRFRA—H 2 (2) -

Charge (credit) to consolidated  A4r& WS R B

income statement (7)) 10 (10) -

At 30th April, 2007 RZZEZELFMA="H 12 (12) -
(Credit) charge to consolidated ~ W&galzk (F)%)

income statement EHiES (2) 2 -

At 30th April, 2008 R-ZZEZENFTOA=+H 10 (10) -

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$515 million (2007: HK$513 million) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$57 million (2007:
HK$68 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$458
million (2007: HK$445 million) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

1 08 QPL International Holdings Limited

REER AEBBERDAZREE
$#£515,000,0008 L (Z T T L F :
513,000,000 7T) ] A {E 4K 88 & 2K
WA ERZEEEBRAELTN B
& ES57,000,0008 L (ZETLF:
68,000,000/ 7T) - {8 M 70 M % 78 8
7R K s ) A % Bt K £2458,000,000
BT (ZZT T4 1 445,000,000 7T)

RELEHIEEE - ZBBEEBAIE
PR EAAE 85 o



28.

29.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 30th April, 2007, the Group
disposed of a subsidiary to an independent third party
for a cash consideration of approximately HK$2 million.
The carrying amount of the net assets of the subsidiary at
the date of disposal were HK$185,000 which essentially
represented the golf club membership owned by the

subsidiary.

The subsidiary disposed of did not contribute significantly
to the Group’s cash flows or operating results for the year
ended 30th April, 2007.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding

capital commitments as follows:

28.

29.

HE—KEB2AAE
REE-_TTLtFMA=FTHILF
B AEE®RRESREL2,000,000
ATRA-—EZBYE=FHE BB

NAlcHINBARIRNEERBHZFE
EIREE 51850008 T BB L&
ZHBRARMEEZEREXIkEME
£ o

HEZHMBRARIHAKREBRE-ZFT
tEMA=ZFTALFEZRERES
REXRBYBERNAR -

\{z]

BEREE
REBEH AREEREBETZERK
Emr

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET
Capital expenditure in respect of BEREBEYETABRRE
acquisition of property, plant and IRAE B IRER P IERE
equipment contracted for but 2 HEREE
not provided in the consolidated Z2EXRAY
financial statements 1 2
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ-_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

30.

31.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
in respect of premises for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as

30. HAYERE

REER  AEERBEIAIHE2E
EROEREARBTINZ B RKE
HEXHzZBMBAMT :

follows:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET
Within one year —FR 10 13
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZFNT (BREERWF) 35 36
Over five years FaiE L F 78 87
123 136

Leases are negotiated for a term of twenty years for
certain production facilities in the PRC and terms of one

to five years for other premises with fixed monthly rentals.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group participates in two defined contribution
schemes which are an Employee Retirement Scheme
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the

control of trustees.

1 1 O QPL International Holdings Limited

31.

RPEETEERBME  HOK
“TFHBER MEMEFTEOL
BE-—ZhEHPER UEEEA
EHE -

RAKREZETE
AEE2EMEEREKE - D5
RBRBBEERAGEGIELZEER
ERGFE (BEXENRFTE D) IR =F
ZEFET_ARBRIUERTERF
REIRZ za b ERE S8 ([RE
T8l cZEFFEZEEEXEA
ERTUESHALAEBREENF
BH -



31.

32.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES

(continued)

All full time employees are eligible to join the ORSO
Scheme after completion of three continuous months
of service with the Group and opt to contribute a fixed
percentage of 3% or 5% of their monthly basic salary
whereas the Group contributes an equivalent amount
to that scheme. After December 2000, all employees
exceeding a specified income range are required to join
the MPF Scheme and contribute a fixed percentage
(currently 5%) of their relevant income but cap at
a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per month to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by the Group. For
employees joining both schemes, the total contributions
made by each of the Group and the employees which
exceed the mandatory contributions required by the
MPF Scheme are paid to the ORSO Scheme as voluntary

contribution.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to

make the specified contributions.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended
30th April, 2008 made by the Group amounted to HK$2
million (2007: HK$2 million).

PLEDGED ASSETS

At 30th April, 2008, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of HK$29 million (2007: HK$32 million) were
pledged to secure certain banking facilities, bank loan and

other loans granted to the Group.

31.

32.

ERREZESE (B

FEZBREEREERBASEE R =
BA®BEEERDEBERKE
WA ERRERAH 23%H5%E E
BOERER - mASEERAER
CREZAEELHR - R_FTE
F+_RE FMAEBHETRA&HE
ZEBHAZEBREBESTE  KEAH
BRBAZEEBED L GR¥R5%)
HErslELHE - HEHRERAES A
1,000 7 - MAKSBEBIAERE
EHER - R 2EZMET S E
BEME AEEREESBE ZHNE
HHELEERTEMRTE 2R EHX
ERNEBRERAE ErRBREM

Eo
TA °

AEEzFTERENHE 2 MNP EBH
BEREZEZRKEMNE - AEEA
FRAREHNFEELHFENAETE
DHZEF UEBEBEN - K&
BRI B 2 AEERIELE

EHEHK o

HE-_ZTEN\FNA=1THILFE -
ANEE M st S 504 A2,000,000
BT (ZEZ4AF 2,000,000/ 7T) °

EEEKH
RZEENFEFNA=Z+H E@
129,000,000 L (Z T £ F :
32,000,000 7T) 2 ERREHED
HF - - UBRSEETAEE 2S5 THT
BME RITERMEMER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 & ZE=
.S

33.

ZZ\FOA=FTHLEFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme:

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
on 29th November, 2006. The purpose of the Scheme
is to provide the eligible persons (“Eligible Persons”) as
defined in the Scheme with the opportunity to acquire
interests in the Company and to encourage the Eligible
Persons to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. The Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options to Eligible Persons,
including, but not limited to, the full-time employees
or directors (excluding Mr. Li Tung Lok) of the Company
and subsidiaries (the “Eligible Employee(s)”) or his or her

associate.

The share option granted by the Company at nil
consideration is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which shall not be later than
the day immediately preceding the fifth anniversary of
the date of grant, where the acceptance date should not
be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The exercise
price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme shall be determined by the
Board of Directors but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; or (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant of the options.

1 12 QPL International Holdings Limited
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33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

As at 30th April, 2008, an aggregate of 27,525,000 share
options granted under the Scheme remained outstanding
representing 3.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which the options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any one grantee in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue in such 12-month
period up to and including the proposed date of grant,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
No option shall be granted to the Eligible Persons if the
aggregate value of shares which may be subscribed in
respect of outstanding options exceed (a) in case of an
Eligible Employee, 5 times of his or her then gross annual
salary and (b) in any other cases, HK$5 million, or any
other amount approved by the Board of Directors either

generally or on a case by case basis.

33.

UG AERZNRRZ (B)

RZZEZENFWA=+H REZ
E &2 A $£27,525,00017 B8 Pk
RBIMKRTE HERARAEBEITR
R23.5% WEZFERLEZER
PR 2BROESEE T EBEAR
REIRBEZTEIE A ZEBITRA
10% < A - AFAERITREREE
TEMAZETZIROESEH  T15
HBEARQA TR ZEEITRA3I0% °
AEARARBRRELRIE  REM
1218 B B3 A0 faT 8 Rl A 5% A BT &
EEREMPRZBRHEE  TEHE
BARRARBEZYBEEZZREAH
ZN2EABHEACEEZETRNDI% -
e BMALTZRARITERREES
HOEzARBERNBREEBA)
(MEEREEMS) EERZFH
BESE kD) (REMEMBRAMES)
5,000,000/ Tk & F &% — MR & (A
RIER MLz EREMESE - BT
FrRZEEBATRLBRE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ=_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE
i,

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 33. URODBERZARRIE (8
(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TRBPEEENEEMBEAEZARQA
share options held by the directors and employees during BRERFRAZE
the year:
Outstanding Movements during Outstanding
Exercise at 1st May, the year at 30th April,
Option type  Date of grant price 2007 Granted Forfeited 2008
R-ZZEZtH R=ZBENF
AA-H FRED A=+H
BREER RLEAH fTHEE R ATE 2R 2RI 1 AT
HK$
BT
Directors 11th May, 2007 0.70 - 4,650,000 - 4,650,000
5% RZZEZLFAA+—A
Employees 11th May, 2007 0.70 - 24,675,000 (1,800,000) 22,875,000
& R-_ZZtFHhA+—H

- 29,325,000 (1,800,000) 27,525,000

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ WFAERAI{TF 19,550,000
No options were exercised during the year. FARAWEITEEARE -

Share options were granted on 11th May, 2007 to AKARRZZEE+FRA+—HRAAD
different counterparties with a vesting period of 2 years. RN SUFHAIREEEHAEARMFE
Two-third of total share option can be exercised at any B ARATREZNERERD T
time from the date of acceptance whereas one-third of BERTEL2NEREZ=Z2=""T
total share options can be exercised on and after the REHAHEAZEBFRHEE 8
first anniversary of the grant date, provided the grantee ATEEREREZI=S— KHA
has been in continuous employment with the Group ERANBEEIENANERH —F -
for one year, until the date immediately preceding the BEEZ2ERE BRI Z2ERBF
fifth anniversary of the grant date. The fair values of —HBAaL - KA-BEARAEBEETER
the options determined at the dates of grant using the R EEHBEZ AFELES5,000,000
binomial model were approximately HK$5 million. BT °
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33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
values of share options:

Closing price of the Company’s

shares on grant date HK$0.70
Exercise price HK$0.70
Risk-free interest rate 4.084%
Expected option life 2 to 4 years
Expected volatility 45%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
four years prior to the issuance of share option. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

The expected life of the share options is determined from
2 to 4 years, which represents the expected years of
services of the employees with the Group from the date
of grant up to the date of exercise of the share option.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair values of the share options are
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective

assumptions.

33.

N

URBAERBZARR S (&)

AREBEREATERKBZBERAT

KA ARG R

AHEIZ B 0.70% 7T
1TEE 0.70/ 7T
B = b A & 4.084%
Bk ZFEBRFH 2E4F
8 B % 18 45%
TBHIR B X 0%

FHRBAEHBREMNBENSE
ZARRBBAE R M EE - R
AzEMFHERBEEEB CRER
AT EE  TERIRTAEE
PN (G

BREZEHNFHR/2EAF  RKKHE
HEERNERBRESARETER
BRESERANEE ZBHREFH -

2D FRA R SR AR 2
AFE HEBRELFERRAZ
EHRBRDEEREE 2 R
o BREZEERETAZH (Y
RETENER) MU -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ-_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BB
In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered RABSEBH AEBSETTIE
into the following related party transactions: B2 5
(a)  ASAT group (a) £BKXKEE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEB#ER BEET
Sales of integrated circuit 5 A B B 3l RAE
leadframes, heatsinks and BREN 2R N INod iR
stiffeners 89 76
Interest income for convertible — AR E LR 2
preferred shares B WA 12 "
(b)  Interest-free loans are obtained from a director, as (b) M—NUEENBZzZEEEN
disclosed in Note 24. FIERM 2455 -
() Compensation of key management personnel (c) EBEEEHM
The remuneration of directors and other members EERHEMSAEBAEFA
of key management during the year as follows: ZMEmT
2008 2007
—EBEN\F —EELF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEBET
Short-term benefits 52 AR A 17 24
Share-based payments PARR A B 27 2 17 5K 1 -
18 24
The remuneration of directors and key management EERTEERABZHE
is determined by the remuneration committee TEFMEESZEREMBMAXRE
having regard to the performance of individuals LM @BPEET -

and market trends.
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35.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 30th April, 2008 and 2007 which
principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group as the directors are of the opinion that a full
list of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive length.
These subsidiaries operate principally in the place of

incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

35. TEMBLARFE
UNTERRAR_ZEENFR_EZF
tEMAS+EEIEYEAEML K
E BERABIWEBARSE &
ERB HEHENBARNZEES

BRITE - FRIFSAMIE

%M R

NAITENEEMAL AL -

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital/

issued share capital held by

Place of BEEMER/
establishment/ Paid up registered capital/ BRAREZEELA
Name of subsidiary incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital Company  subsidiary
WEARER RI/ZMes IEEE BHEMER /BRORE N HWEAR
% %
The Industrial Investment  Cayman Islands Investment holding 2,050 ordinary shares 2.44 97.56
Company Limited HEHE REER of HK$1 each
2,050 BREEIETLZ
EaR
QPL (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 408,000,772 ordinary shares 100 -
RECEERAT BA REAR of HK$0.04 each
408,000,772k Bk A &
0.04BTLZERAR
QPL Limited (Note a) Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each - 100

mEERLE (Wita) &B integrated circuit
leadframes, heatsinks
and stiffeners

HERHEEEMEHRD|
RIE HASERIMER

and 1,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each
(Note b)
2hEREBIET . ERR
R1,000B8REE1ETL
EREEERMA, (Feb)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2008 HZ-_ZZ \FWNA=1HILEE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

35. FEMBRAAFRE®

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital/

issued share capital held by

Place of BEEMER/
establishment/ Paid up registered capital/ BRAREZEELA
Name of subsidiary incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital Company  subsidiary
WEARER RI/ZMes IEEE BEAEMmER BRARE N HWEAR
% %
Talent Focus Industries Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 50 50
Limited (Note a) &5 stamped leadframes MREREBE BT ERAR
RBEXERAA and moulds
(Mita) RERHEBRRSIRE
RIE
QPL (US) Inc. United States Distribution of integrated 150,603 ordinary shares of no 66.4 33.6
of America circuit leadframes and par value, paid up to
e investment holding UsD4,071,281
PHERERIBER 150,603k EEEE B -
REZR B&RAR4,071,281% T
FEETIE (F) PRC Distribution of stamped USD3,000,000 - 100
BRAT & leadframes and moulds 3,000,000% T
(Note c) (it z¥c) AEBRSIBERIE
Notes: ffsE -
(a) Operating principally in the PRC. (a) FTERFELE -
(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are (b) HAEBREAEZRELERD  BF L
practically of no economic value. WG EBE -

(0 A foreign wholly-owned corporate.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LU

The consolidated income statement and the consolidated balance LTAREaEARERD HIBKEEZRE WK
sheet of the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted MEZAEBBEAFEVREE 2546 ke
from the Group’s published audited consolidated financial REGEBEERBER

statements, are set out below:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT malsEx
For the year ended 30th April
BEMNA=1THLEE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“TERF ZTTRF O ZFTAF ZETEF ZBRENF
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEAT BEATL BEATL BHEATT BEER
(restated) (restated)
(mE7) (&)

Turnover EET 470 418 414 306 337
Profit (loss) before taxation BREANEF (&) 6 271 (25) (102) (43)
Taxation fi1E 2 4 - 21 (1)
Profit (loss) for the year FERREGRT

attributable to shareholders (E18) 8 (267) (25) (81) (44)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GREERER
At 30th April
REA=+H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—TTME Z—ZTTRE ZTTRF —TTtFE ZBENE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET BEET BEAETL BEETRT
(restated) (restated)
(E5) (E35))
Investment properties REME 182 - - - =
Property, plant and equipment ME  MRLERE 335 276 241 162 122
Interest in an associate BN TR 169 2) - - -
Investments in securities BHERE 5 4 - - =
Investment in convertible ARRELREE
preferred shares — loan portion BEXHBH - - - - =
Available-for-sale investments AftEERE - - 3 -
Restricted cash XRHBR 18 - - -
Current assets RBEE 171 208 223 203 181
Current liabilities REEE (254) (213) (164) (152) (116)
626 273 303 213 187
Share capital [N 51 51 61 61 61
Share premium and reserves W An i B N 448 179 224 148 122
Shareholders' fund KRES 499 230 285 209 183
Long term borrowings ROEE 108 37 13 - -
Obligations crystallised BITERRER
under guarantees 8 - - - -
Accrued expenses [zt &R 6 > > 4 4
Deferred tax liabilities ELHIERE 5 1 - - -
626 273 303 213 187
Amounts disclosed above for the years ended 30th April, 2004 X EREEZE _EENER _TEERFN
and 2005 have been restated to reflect the change in accounting STHEFEZHRBEELEY  UREE
policy for the adoption of HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the EEEXRFNAZ=ZTHILFERRNES
year ended 30 April, 2006. SHMAERMcBEAVB RS ERMEH
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